
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, August 3rd, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member 



Susan Todd, Board Member (absent)



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John Milmore, CAC Chairman  




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 



Mr. Stephen Ferreira, DOTS engineer



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be a couple of changes to the agenda.  The applicant at 23-08, the Alfonzetti application, if you’re here for that one you need to know that they have asked for an adjournment until September.  If you’re here and you’d like to make some comments you’re welcome to do so but you just need to know that the applicant himself and his reps will be here in September.  There is another change to the agenda regarding the correspondence section.  Because we have a few fairly heavy agenda items and public hearings we’re going to move several of the correspondence pieces which asked essentially for time extensions to the front of the agenda so that we can let those people leave.  Most of them can be done within a matter of two minutes and it probably isn’t worth it for them to sit through three hours of hearings to have two minutes.  So we can begin with the Resolution and then we’re going to go to correspondence.

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2010
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we need an adoption of the meeting minutes of June 1, so moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS
PB 14-98    a.
Application of David Gable for Final Plat Approval of a 3 lot major subdivision of a 58.46 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Washington Street, approximately 2,500 feet south of Montrose Station Road, as a shown on a Final Plat entitled “Washington Trails” prepared by Robert Baxter, P.L.S. dated May 4, 2010 and on a 7 page set of improvement drawings entitled “Improvement Plan/Integrated Plot Plan for Washington Trails Subdivision” prepared by Tim Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated June 2, 2010.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution #37-10, seconded.
Mr. Tim Cronin asked I have a question on one of the conditions of that Resolution.  I’m the engineer who’s office prepared that plan and in particular I’m looking at condition #5 of the Resolution which requests that a 5% inspection fee be provided to the Town prior to the map being signed and I have an issue with that because that 5% inspection fee is generally imposed when you have improvements which will ultimately be dedicated to the Town or be public improvements.  That’s not the case here.  This is two private driveways.  These are essentially covered under Building Permit items and also as far as the Resolution 114-00: the Town of Cortlandt Board, I think that deals primarily with applications to the Planning Board and doesn’t really talk about the fee that’s referenced here so I’m just looking for some clarification on that and would like to see that condition taken out and go back to the standard Building Permit fees and if that can’t happen this evening then my client doesn’t want this Resolution acted on. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated since the Director or DOTS is not here tonight and probably there was some conversation with Ed, you would imagine, yes?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded this is a standard condition but Mr. Cronin is correct in that it is typically to cover public improvements.  John Klarl and I talked about this and decided to leave it in and in Ed’s absence it does make it a little bit more difficult.  I don’t know exactly how he would feel about it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and neither do I so I suspect that we may want to just hold this off until next month.

Mr. Tim Cronin asked is it possible to take this item out of the Resolution and then have the discussion with Ed and then we can add in what he thinks is appropriate later on or say at the September meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor response I don’t think we’ve ever done that before. 

Mr. John Klarl stated not really.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we really should leave it intact and just not act on the Resolution tonight. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I’d like to rescind my motion please. 

Mr. Stephen Ferreira maybe they can adjust it to say that at the discretion of the Town Engineer but I still think that leaves for an open-ended conversation when Ed does get back.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated from what I’m hearing because it’s in there and he wants it out you don’t really want to act on it at all.  Am I right with that?
Mr. Tim Cronin stated Resolution 114-00 of the Town Board has fees associated with Building Permits in addition to the fees for applications for the Planning Board and so on.  If the Planning Board were to have these outside improvements covered under the Building Permit fee schedule – although, you know what, it’s something that’s never been done before.  It’s work outside the building.  This is an entirely new condition that I’m not familiar with and I think I need to have a discussion with Mr. Vergano. 

Mr. John Bernard asked Tim, is this a deal breaker?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded it’s getting there.  We have 58 acres.  We’ve given 52 – yes it’s time for a conversation. 

Mr. John Bernard stated in all fairness then it would be best to hold this off for the next meeting.  You’ll have your discussion with the engineer and get it resolved.  I understand the situation.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Steve has asked that the motion be rescinded and we’ll just leave this off and hold it in abeyance until next time. 

Mr. Tim Cronin asked adjourned until September?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, please.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I motion that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED) 

PB 1-07      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of  a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road, as shown on a  drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary Plat,  Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates”, and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan”, latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chair I’m recused on this application.

Mr. John Klarl stated so am I.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will have our council here Mr. Karl Lodes.  He’s been here several times before and he will be acting as our council for this particular application.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair I was not at the work session, my partner Brad Schwartz was.  I did hear the discussion that the Board conducted and we’re certainly well aware that the issue that’s been before you most recently has hadto proceed for SEQRA purposes.  It’s my understanding that your Board is inclined to adopt a positive declaration and move forward with an environmental impact statement and my client is certainly not asking me tonight to rise and object to the preparation of an environmental impact statement primarily out of the spirit of moving forward in cooperation.  However, we do want to underscore for all of you and for staff whom I’m very well aware knows what we’ve done.  It’s kind of an unusual process because we’ve been working very cooperatively with your Board and with staff and with your outside consultants for quite some time preparing numerous studies that were requested by staff.  We have submitted a tremendous amount of information to Steve Coleman who I know is here tonight and has actually signed off on much of the wetland analysis and biodiversity that was conducted.  LBG Engineering who did a tremendous amount of on-site civil engineering and analysis of water quantity and quality and drainage as well Adler Consulting, your professional traffic engineer who ironically is also here tonight on another matter.  It’s my understanding, and I just want to have a frank conversation before you proceed, that a lot of what we’re doing is together with your Board is to be lead agency and your staff to make sure that we codify and memorialize and have everything in one functional location and one fashion that can easily be reviewed by you, easily reviewed by staff and your outside consultants and most importantly reviewed by the public in one location.  The reason I say that is because this is – if there ever were a situation Madame Chair where we are right for a – and I actually went and looked at the tape of the meeting two meetings back, Mr. Kline’s phrase of a focused analysis, this is a situation where there should be a very focused scope.  This is not the time to pull out the scope that one pulls out on every other 50 lot subdivision.  This is a 6-lot subdivision where, as I said, most of the work has been done, most of the work has been reviewed by your consultants.  It’s already been paid for in terms of the review by your consultants.  Part of me would love to spend the next half hour debating with you that we shouldn’t adopt the pos. dec.  Mr. Giordano is here tonight to make sure that I don’t do that.  All I’m asking is that we try to map out a procedure so that we can continue to work cooperatively.  My understanding is that despite the fact that we were not involved at the commencement of this application, your Board never actually declared themselves lead agency.  I learned that this evening somewhat to my surprise in light of everything we’ve doing and all the circulation and information that’s been going around.  I would ask that tonight we designate your intent to declare yourselves lead agency, that we come back at the end of the 30-day period at the September and that you declare yourselves lead agency at that time.  We’re already working, in fact your staff generated a rather comprehensive outline of environmental and socioeconomic issues that had to be analyzed so I think there’s the genesis of a scoping document that can be worked on and refined by staff.  I’d ask that we try to do that between now and September and that we conduct a scoping hearing if you’re conducting a scoping hearing and I would remind your Board, no one knows better than I, what your custom and practice is I just feel compelled to remind you SEQRA does not mandate a scoping hearing and you do not have to conduct a scoping hearing.  If you are going to do so as you tend to historically do I would ask that it be done at the October meeting simply in the mutual spirit of cooperation back from the Board.  That is what Mr. Giordano has asked me to ensure we do with you this evening in light of the fact the engineering, the traffic and I should say the road analysis and the legal issue that we were able to work through with Mr. Lodes’ help has all been put behind us. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do intend in fact to declare our intent to be lead agency and we will do that tonight.  Certainly the appropriate measures will be taken from staff in terms of getting materials out and circulating them and that kind thing. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair, if I could interrupt just procedurally, Chris you should have everything that you need to circulate in terms of -- you’ve got an EAF and then some.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and then of course there is the whole issue that this is a public hearing and there may be some things that the area residents might want to talk about tonight that would need to be part of that scoping document so we will be listening to input from them about some issues perhaps that they would really like to see in this very focus.  We do agree, I think we all agree that this document needs to be very focused.  We can’t have meandering back-and-forth all over the place.  It’s not going to be conducive to making a really good decision.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair I really do appreciate you saying that because that actually leads me to my next comment and that is to the extent that we’ve already been in a public hearing phase and we’re in a public hearing phase I’m delighted that this document is out there and available for the public and that they can comment and that’s one of the reasons why I suggested to you to at least consider that in effect your conducting scoping and you’ve been conducting scoping and maybe this is a situation where you need not conduct a scoping hearing.  You’re going to have comments from the public.  They have been well represented and they have been physically present at meetings and they have identified for all of us their issues of concern.  I think your Board knows them.  I think my client and our team knows them and we’re certainly happy to proceed. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated did you have more that you need to say?  This is a public hearing and if there are members from the community…

Mr. John Milmore stated I’m the Chairman of the Conservation Advisory Council, commonly called the CAC of the Town of Cortlandt.  We generated a memo dated August 2nd, 2010 to the Planning Board Town of Cortlandt, Subject: PB-107 Upland Estates, which we’re discussing now.  “The CAC believes that this project should receive a positive declaration and undergo a full SEQRA review according to article 8 of the New York State Environmental Conservation Law.  The 23.48 acre parcel of land is currently heavily wooded and mountainous and part of a wildlife corridor.  By the most conservative estimate the ‘area of disturbance’ created by the proposed 6 homes would be approximately 6.4 acres but this is probably far short of the true ecological footprint of the development.  Section 617.7 of SEQRA states ‘to require an EIS for the proposed action the lead agency must determine that the action may include the potential for at least one significant adverse environmental impact.’  Among the criteria in section 617.7 that would indicate a ‘significant adverse impacts on the environment’ are: ‘1) a substantial increase in the potential for erosion, flooding, leaching, or drainage problems.   2) The removal or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna.  3) Impacts on a significant habitat area.  4) The impairment of the character or quality of important esthetic resources or of existing community or neighborhood character.  5) A substantial change in the use or intensity of use of land including open space.’  Section 617.7 also states that ‘the lead agency must consider reasonably related long term, short term, direct, indirect and cumulative impacts.’  The current proposal would involve selling more than 20 acres of land to private homeowners whose use of the land is difficult to predict.  The only reasonable way to assess the potential environmental impact would be to make a positive declaration.  Enough evidence has surfaced during the public hearings to warrant this declaration.”
Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated on behalf of the Croton Arboretum.  First of all I would like to thank this Board if in fact it is your intent to declare a positive declaration for this project and to receive with a full EIS.  My questions tonight, my letter is essentially moot by your decision to declare a pos. dec. but I do have questions which are – I’m not sure if they’re technical or if they’re legal and I’m going to ask them.  One of them is both the neighbors adjacent to this project and some of their consultants have found defects in part I of the EAF and my first question is: does this process require the preparation of a second EAF that addresses these perceived deficits?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that gets back to the whole procedure question.  I suppose the applicant, you’re talking about part I, if you read into the record your specific issues we’ll analyze them and talk to the applicant and see if they’ll – because they’re responsible for part I to change their answers to part I.

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I don’t want to tie up the Board’s time tonight with all of them but the greatest specific issue that we have is the statement in the EAF that 100% of the soil on the project’s site is well drained and we and several of the consultants who have been hired by the neighbors disagree with that statement.  We maintain, as do some of the consultants who’ve been hired, that what is needed here is a site-specific soil study for this project and we disagree with Mr. Steinmetz that a thorough engineering analysis of the soils or the slopes or the hydrology or various other aspects of the site have been done. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are all of your issues related to the soil?

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded no, I’m just going to stop with that one because otherwise we’d be here all night.  My question was really whether or not this new proceeding requires or would allow a new EAF.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’ve gathered then you understand Chris is saying you need to, in a letter, indicate what your specific concerns are and then we’ll direct them to go back over them and check.

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated my second question has to do with whether the Board can require the engineering reports that have been prepared – not just the engineering reports but the consultant’s reports that have been prepared for the neighbors be reviewed by staff.  I understand that really I believe, and I’m not sure that this is correct, that the Town only has to refer to the reports that were prepared on its behalf rather than on the resident’s behalf but the professional expertise that has been secured for this project is a valuable resource for the Town and I would like to see those reports treated as more than just correspondence. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m at a disadvantage.  I don’t know that I can direct staff per se to read every single thing that is handed and you know that there are voluminous amounts of material handed to staff. 

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I’m referring specifically to the consultant’s reports; the engineers, the arborists, the hydrologists, the environmental consultants. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re kind of short on staff.

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated all the more reason to use the reports since they’ve developed valuable information by credentialed professionals.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Karen you mean review and comment on it by staff?

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded yes. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would think that this discussion might better be had when we’re talking about the scope.  The applicant in the expanded part III talks about incorporating all of those reports into the document and that’s typically what would be done, they’d all be incorporated; the hydrogeology report or the hydrology report has been reviewed by our outside consultants.  A lot of times with the specific issues whether it’s hydrogeology or traffic we send those out to consultants because we lack the expertise in house to do them.  I suppose staff both in Planning and Engineering can review the particular engineering reports but we have 30 or 40 cases that are before us.  Typically, those would come in, they’d be put in the document and our outside consultant that would be hired to review the document would comment on those. 

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated two things about that Chris: 1) yes, it would be useful to incorporate them but to incorporate them and acknowledge them is not quite the same thing as to address the points that they’ve raised.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would have our consultants address the points that they raised.  

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated just as a point of information, the Riddick report lists 13 deficits just with the storm water management plan and I would think it would be helpful to staff to have that information right in front of their eyes rather than have to parse the consultant’s reports entirely. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you delivered a letter to our office just prior to tonight’s meeting which obviously hasn’t gotten to the Planning Board and so that will get to the Planning Board.  A lot of what’s in that letter is something that the Planning Board really needs to think about because I glanced at it so correct me if I’m wrong but I believe that you’re requesting additional new studies 

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded yes. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued and additional new studies typically aren’t – they have done studies, correct me if I’m wrong but I believe that you’re not pleased with those studies. 

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard responded our point is that those studies are not adequate. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s the type of information that has to be discussed in the scoping document to see what the Planning Board wants the applicant to do additionally or if the fact that the Town’s own consultant to analyze the hydrogeology then the neighbors had their own hydro-geologist, our consultants commented, their consultants commented.  There’s 6 or 7 pieces of correspondence back-and-forth about that issue already.  The question is do you want to revisit all of that with additional studies or do you want that incorporated into a document and organized for you to look at and make a judgment about which consultant you believe?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated traditionally we’ve had the material all, as David mentioned, you put things in one place so that we can talk about or at least read the hydrology studies and then we’ll have the comments from our consultants versus their consultants.  Karen, you’re a player, you’ve been around a long time in doing this kind of thing and you know that this is a lot of information that the Board members have to digest and it’s not just this case, as you know, there’s case after case after case and there’s no end sometimes to the amount of studies that people are willing to present.  You can’t possibly read every single word or every single study.  I hope you will believe that we will do our very best to read everything that we can and certainly where there is a conflict of opinion to get in there and see what one person is saying versus the other.  For me, quite honestly to say that I can just sit and read just for say Upland, numerous reports and then additional reports that clarify points within that report and it could go on quite some time. 

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I’m very sympathetic to that Loretta, I have two points about that which is I believe that the reports coming from experts, from people with professional credentials have greater weight than my letters or the letters of the residents however profound and important number one, and number two I think that the reports of the consultants that point out gaps in the information that has been provided and mistakes actually drive what might be called the scope of the scope.  I understand completely your concern and staff’s concern about being overwhelmed by this volume of material but I think that the material is valuable and will guide your decision.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and actually we do, I can speak for myself personally, I do tend to go looking for the sources of conflict.  When people agree there’s not much to be said for that unless you totally disagree but certainly where there are points where one consultant says one thing and another, I think you’re right, that does drive, you have to go find out well you know which one am I going to give more weight.  The Board does this all the time so yes I think we will earnestly try to read as much as we can from the consultants, yours and ours and everybody’s but whether it gets to the point we can continue to just read report after report…

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I understand what you’re saying and I understand what Chris believes that our…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just as an example I checked this today.  At our request LBG did a hydrologic study in February of 2009.  The Arboretum responded in April, LBG responded in May, GEI an outside consultant hired by the Arboretum responded in July, LBG responded in August, the Arboretum responded later in August and the Arboretum responded again in November.  It’s all there, it’s disagreeing consultants.

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated okay Chris, but I didn’t bring up the point of warring consultant’s opinions.  What I brought up with fundamental criticism by one engineer of what has been submitted by the applicant saying that the data in some instances is inadequate to make the plans and the assumptions that have been made and in other cases it’s actually incorrect which is a more substantial area of disagreement than one consultant says another consultant says etc.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s sort of the complexity of the process in that we’re into a process already.  Normally, it would be those reports would have come out of a scope and then that is the public hearing on the DEIS you’d be bringing up those concerns.  Those concerns have already been brought up to the Board and that Riddick has responded and has concerns with Mr. Mastromonaco’s…

Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I guess what you’re saying is a sense of scope on the environmental issues rather than the legal issues that pertain to access to the road is now about to be addressed in September or October that it’s time to bring them up again at that point?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and try to figure out how to work them into the scope.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated this is just to briefly address the last speaker’s comments.  It’s interesting because you listen to that play out and Mr. Kehoe I genuinely appreciate your identifying the dates that Mr. Schwartz was grabbing through his file.  This is an unusual application procedure because we’ve done, you’ve done, and your consultants have done so much of the work already.  Listening to Ms. Bernard’s comments it’s almost as if I’m standing at a DEIS public hearing because we’re listening to that level of comment but Chris is right, we’re going to take all of the information we’ve done, it’s unquestionably it’s been analyzed, reviewed, analyzed, reviewed, bought and paid for, it’s going to be part of the DEIS.  In addition, if there’s anything else that we need to supplement, it’ll be part of the DEIS but to listen to some things and go backwards.  You heard the speaker ask for a site-specific soil analysis, that’s one of those issues that went back-and-forth several times.  Mr. Coleman, who’s here tonight, in his report to your Board, he’s your consultant, in October wrote: “The applicant has provided additional information that’s considered acceptable and therefore it is recommended to your Board that a site-specific soils analysis is not necessary this time.”  So, a lot of these issues we’ve been through and I think Chris is right, we’re going to have to bring them back up and make sure you’re all aware of what we’ve covered, we’re going to cover it.  We’re going to make sure, as I said, all in one location and it’ll be subject to public review as it has been throughout this entire process.  I say that because I want to give your Board a) the reminder of what we’ve been through for the last two years and b) the level of comfort that you’re going to have a record that’s clear and that your staff and your Board can rely upon.  We would hope in some that we can move forward with the lead agency issue and hopefully reach some informal agreement with the Board that we’re going to have an expedited scope established since these reports are already in front of you.

Ms. Joann Whalen stated it’s interesting to hear the comments back-and-forth and there certainly have been a lot of work done with regard to the development of the site itself.  I would submit, however that there has been little to no information provided with regard to the lower Lane and the impacts of the lower Lane.  I’m only separating the Lane because that’s how this project has developed.  We had a lot of information on the upper, a lot of it we don’t agree with.  You have consultants, experts in the fields who we’re questioning these results as Karen has put forth however, the lower Lane it’s 1,200 feet.  It’s almost one quarter of a mile.  There has never been a discussion or a test about the wells on that Lane.  The Lane owners who’s wells are right adjacent to the roadway where if this is approved the road will be widened 18 feet and will definitely impact wells.  There’s been no wells studies, there’s been no soils studies with regard to the re-pavement of the Lane.  The Lane right now, as the engineers reports say, and these are the Laner’s engineers they say that the way that the road is designed right now, and the pitch, it helps curtail the runoff.  Once the road is changed there will be a great deal of runoff.  There’s been no studies, nothing done about what’s going to happen with drainage, nothing about putting in drains.  We’ve had really nothing said about the culvert which was brought up at the last meeting by Mr. Kessler.  The trees; we’ve talked about trees, we don’t have a tree plan, they don’t have a tree plan other than to take them down.  The drip line; they in their reports themselves say that they will be going over and invading the drip line.  What is the impact on this road to the whole environmental – everything that’s environmentally which is everything on that road.  You have the wetlands down there, you have the trees, you have the wells, you have sewers.  We have blasting.  We’ve had nothing that’s telling us if you’re going to blast rock up there which they may be blasting that it’s not going to affect the lower portion of the Lane.  While there’s been a lot done on the upper there’s nothing as I can see really that’s been done with the lower and that has to get into the studies.  I don’t want that to get lost in the translation and that’s why I bring it up and I thank you very much for your attention.
Mr. Kyler Cragnolin stated I think one of Karen’s points was and it was the same point I tried to make last month that the site-specific work on the soils has not been done.  If you look closely at the LBG report they relied quite a bit on information provided by the applicant’s engineer and I think that much of the engineering they had done was from the comfort of a swivel chair in their office based on what I was reading.  I don’t think a lot of work was done on site, at least I have not found it in the record.  I would want to know depths of soils, percolation, what time of year those tests were done.  All of this is critical for the reasons that I put into the record last month.  Mr. Steinmetz has said that we have an adequate amount of information and work done to render a proper decision on this, I don’t think there has been and I think an objective review of the record will show that we need some more work to be done.  I think DEIS is the right venue to move ahead with.  I commend the Board for that and I think we need to take a look at scope on that and I would welcome the opportunity to provide some input at that point.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who would like to speak at this time?

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we declare our intent to be lead agency on this application, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question, this is really for Mr. Steinmetz and Mr. Lodes what do we do procedurally with the fact that we have an open public hearing now with respect to the fact that we’re sort of diverging onto another path which will then have a public hearing on the scope and separate public hearings.  Do we just keep this public hearing indefinitely open and it catches up to the DEIS?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ll let Karl address it first and then just offer my opinion if there’s anything to offer.

Mr. Karl Lodes stated I think you can do that.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated just keep it open.

Mr. Karl Lodes stated just leave it open.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you can always adjourn it to a later date at a subsequent meeting if we’re here simply discussing completeness that’s not really a section 276 Town Law public hearing nor is there really a SEQRA procedure for public discussion and debate about accepting the EIS.  There may be meetings where you would actually adjourn the public hearing over to a subsequent date so that you’re not, as we know we try to do with your staff, having the public think they need to be here because it’s a public hearing on that evening. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked well are we looking at then suspending this or adjourning this particular hearing for a couple of months say depending on how fast we move one hearing catches up to the other, what do you think?

Mr. Karl Lodes stated wait until next month when we become lead agency, declaring your intent then in September to make a determination.

Mr. Robert Foley asked should I amend the motion?

Mr. Karl Lodes stated adjourn the public hearing until next month to see whether in fact they become lead agency and then make a determination. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s fine.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I amend the motion to first adjourn this public hearing until September but still to declare now our intent to be lead agency, seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the question is there anybody with an issue, question, problem on that?  

With all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated one last question, Mr. Giordano has asked me – I did lay out for the Board members his hope and expectation of some schedule that we can try to stay focused on in terms of the scope and a possible discussion of a scope, does anybody on the Board want to comment or anybody have an objection as we leave here tonight, again, with Mark sitting here in the spirit or cooperation, does anybody have a problem shooting toward a discussion of the scope at the September meeting and obviously a public hearing if you’re going to do one at the October meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it sounds fine to me.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s okay, do we have to make a motion on that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no it’s more informational Bob.

Ms. Loretta Taylor technically we’ll be coming back and looking to discuss some of the ramifications of this. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you’ve got the bare bones from your staff – you have in effect a draft scoping outline.  We’re going to confer, we’ve heard some comments this evening from the public and hopefully there will be a new document at least is capable of being discussed at the next meeting and then we’ll have a discussion about whether or not you’re going to conduct the scoping here. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated let’s just assume that there’s going to be a scoping public hearing.  A lot of the comments that the residents were making were the type of comments that would be made at a scoping public hearing and then it would be up to you to decide whether to add those items to the scope.  One other point, we are trying to get our arborist out – we sent stuff to him in June, he contacted me with some questions, so the Town arborist is going to be doing work on the site.  It’s coming, it just hasn’t come yet. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.  I know that Mr. Giordano has an arborist and it may be most prudent Chris for him to wait until our arborist report is in front of him.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked this is a newer one?  Because we have your arborist’s reports.  Those were forwarded to our arborist and that’s what he’s basing his proposal on.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s a result of this now table of contents for scoping about additional information in particular of the lower part of the Lane as it’s been called.  So, it may be best to wait for the arborist to report on the submitted FEIS. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated which probably will be fine because the arborist hasn’t submitted anything yet. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated exactly, he’s free to come at any time but it may be more productive for him to go out with this next document he’ll receive.

PB 23-08    b.
Public Hearing: Application of John P. Alfonzetti, P.E., for the property of Angelo Cipriano, for Preliminary Plat Approval and a Tree Removal Permit for a 4 lot major subdivision of 9.25 acres for property located off of Mt. Airy Road E., southeast of Joseph Wallace Drive, as shown on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary 4 Lot Subdivision Mountain View Estates” prepared by John Alfonzetti, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2010.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is the meeting I announced at the beginning of the meeting would be adjourned to September but if anyone would like to speak on this, you can come up.  Is there anyone here who would like to comment on this particular application?  
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adjourn this application, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-10      c.
Public Haring: Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated April 7, 2010.
Mr. Joel Greenberg stated as you recall we had our public hearing at the last meeting.  In fact, we had unusually somebody come up supporting our project which was very nice but to follow through on some of the discussion that we had with the Board last time with basically discussing the curb cuts on Route 6, presently there were five curb cuts, we reduced it down to three, after reviewing it we’ve actually now reduced down to two.  I’ve been in touch with the Permit agent for the New York State Department of Transportation and obviously they are very pleased to eliminate as many curb cuts on Route 6 as possible and as Chris said we will get correspondence from them and would ask that tonight you close the public hearing and have a Resolution for the next meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing and if there’s anyone here who would like to address this particular application, now is your time.  No one.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know Mr. Greenberg’s aware of the July 9th letter from Yorktown commenting on the plan and I think there’s some valid points in here that I would like to be addressed.  The first one: the East Main Street access, the eastern most one, their department is recommending or suggesting that that should remain a one-way ingress to the site. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated that’s the one that’s been eliminated, so that takes care of that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated so the two that are on here are both in and out that are the eastern  side. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated the one they’re talking about the most easterly one has been closed.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and then the other points in here: the cross-walk consideration on Westbrook and the issues by Cortlandt Boulevard.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated we’ve been in discussion my client and Chris and Ed Vergano have been in discussion and we certainly willing to cooperate with whatever program…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll have to work something into the Resolution for you all to look at to see if you’re all in agreement with it.

Mr. John Bernard stated the other issue, Joel that came up at the work session was, I understand you’ve re-worked the landscaping along the street.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes we’ve got a full landscape plan that was requested by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  I believe staff has copies of it if not I will make sure that you get them. 

Mr. John Bernard asked and that approved plan is in conformance with the Cortlandt Boulevard plan?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we had gotten copies of it and we’ll coordinate to make sure that it does.

Mr. John Bernard asked and sidewalks are included?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that, the last time we spoke with Ed Vergano he was unsure of whether he wanted them or didn’t want them and we will wait to see what he has to say. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as I mentioned before, one of the issues might be a contribution towards future sidewalks and landscaping or, depending on what we decide on internally, actually having them put the sidewalk in and that will be worked into a Resolution so you can look at it. 

Mr. John Bernard asked has the Planning Board been copied on plans, architectural plans for the Cortlandt Boulevard?  I know we’ve had pieces. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have a very conceptual plan.  It’s actually on the website.  We can print it out.  It’s a PowerPoint presentation.

Mr. John Bernard stated I think it would be real useful because we’re going to have other applications come up on 6.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think something recently appeared in the press on it with a schematic or an architectural rendering but not everyone looks at the papers.  But I think it is key as John says that this get coordinated with the Cortlandt Boulevard plan.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated obviously this is a very important intersection in the Town and just as you do we also want to make this thing as architecturally pleasant as possible.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s why I brought up the Yorktown memo.  That’s why I thought it was good.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we close the public hearing on this application and bring it back under ‘old business’ at the next meeting subject to DOT approval of the…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated or DOT could conceivably be a condition of the approval.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, we would have a Resolution prepared for the next meeting, okay.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
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PUBLIC HEARING (NEW)
PB 9-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval, a Renewal of a Junkyard Special Permit and  Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated April 22, 2010 (see prior PB 35-06).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated briefly, our development team is here with me this evening.  John Nosek our project engineer, Jim Ulrich our environmental consultant and Bill Fitzpatrick our traffic engineer together with my colleague Brad Schwartz.  We’ve been before your Board several months on this application and I know that you had already opened the public hearing so I’m not going to go backwards and take you through some of the things we did with the PowerPoint presentation and the detailed presentation from Mr. Malone our client.  We are here however, to answer any questions, in particular relative to traffic.  I know Mr. Canning is here and has had an opportunity to review the traffic analysis and provide comments.  I believe he’s got some kind of presentation for your Board.  We’re anxious to hear where he stands and we are here to address any issues relative to the site.  One thing that I would mention, we did receive some comments through Mr. Kehoe about concerns about the appearance of the front of the property and cutting back some grass near the former Youth Center and I appreciate the spirit of communication from Chris because we got somebody out there instantly and addressed that.  You all know that my client has been rather insistent on his desire to try to get the fence and the landscaping approved as soon as possible because he would very much like to work on beautifying the front of that site.  We’re here to listen to some comments and again our team is here if there’s anything specific you want us to address.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing, is there anyone here who would like to make a comment regarding this particular application?

Mrs. Susan Pandolfino stated I live on College Hill Road which is somewhat behind where the Brookfield auto recycling place is going to be.  Is there going to be more than one public hearing for this because I do know a few people that wanted to speak but couldn’t be here today?  Are they going to keep this open for more than one session? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the plan is to adjourn it because we’re waiting for some additional information on a couple of things. 

Ms. Susan Pandolfino stated I just want to say my basic concerns are quality of life issues for neighbors.  I applaud their willingness to open the site, unfortunately there were a number of people that wanted to go that couldn’t make a date so if they’re going to open that at a later time for the public that would be great or local residents.  I’m concerned about the additional truck traffic.  I’m concerned about the additional noise, safety hazards, the pollution, property values and I was curious what type of revenue and operation like this is going to bring to the Town.  Those are general concerns but I think they’re all valid.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well they’re here to answer some of these questions I think at this time.  Mr. Steinmetz?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’ll be very brief on Mrs. Pandolfino’s concerns and questions.  First of all, if you haven’t had a chance Susan to see the site and you’d like to feel free to contact my office and we’ll see if we can make arrangements because we, as you know, did open it up for that.  I know the Board members were all there and got a rather extensive tour of this recycling facility.  What had been a junkyard in the community, literally a junkyard in the community for I think four or five decades is now being converted into a literal state-of-the-art sustainable development site recycling all types of material that the community, the public and the Town generate in terms of metals and things that are being reused; tires, I believe we identified already for the record something in the neighborhood of 40,000 tires had been left on site and were removed, I was corrected, 20,000 to 25,000 tires were removed from the site by my client and put through a system where they were able to be reused and recycled.  A lot of work and a lot of money has been spent cleaning up that property and in terms of safety hazards and quality of life and property value I can assure you that what is there today and what will be there when this project is completed is vastly improved, safer, quieter and something that the Town is going to be quite proud of.  We’re happy to present more information.  There’s a lot of information already publicly available by Brookfield which is an entity that is in existence and the site is something that I know my client is extremely proud of what’s going on. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was just thinking too, there may be additional people in the area who would like to go but again maybe there could be some way you could announce a particular day or dates where you’re going to open it up and let the area people come and see.  It’s kind of difficult to schedule one by one appointments.  I don’t think that works that well. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we do have a very large e-mail list because the Town Supervisor’s been going out to Montrose – it’s called the Montrose Enhancement Plan and she’s had three or four meetings with all of the residents so we have probably 50 or 60 e-mails that if you ever come up with a date or time I can e-mail it to all the residents that want to go.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and the one thing that the community should know because frequently we’re standing here making application for a new operation that’s not in existence and everybody’s concerned about impact.  This facility has been operating since my client purchased it, Jim how long has it been in operation now?  Basically a full year in operation, really what we’re here for are just some site improvements that require your Board’s approval like a fence, signage and a processing pad since the site has historically literally was being done on ground, on uncovered ground.  What’s occurring right now you’re all experiencing and living through and have been for the last year.

Ms. Loretta Taylor by way of updating me on that fence thing, where are we?  I think you had initially said something about white cedar.  I know I don’t particularly like that long, long, long white fence.  It would probably look better if the color is more natural like grayed out or something that fits the area and doesn’t draw so much attention.  It needs to be a little more subdued in my opinion.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I missed you last meeting I was out of town and I know at the prior meeting you had asked us to refer it to Art Clements and the Architectural Review Board…
Mr. Jim Ulrich from Alpine Environmental Consultants.  The site’s landscape architect Nick Schwartz from Cliff Harbor and Associates, after our initial proposal he had the same thoughts.  So, he’s actually reworking and he’s been in conversation with Steve Coleman on the plantings but actually what they’re thinking about now is a grayish type composite material rather than cedar because it’s easier to keep clean.  They’ve been working that back-and-forth but where they are right now is kind of a weathered gray look and a material that would have texture and not be smooth.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that would look nice because the tree trunks gray out much and you don’t notice them all the time and if you see white right there it pulls your eye and it’s a very long fence so we don’t really need to see that much.

Mr. Jim Ulrich stated these photo simulations that we had done show a two-foot field stone knee wall and then the fence so that’s going to be updated to show the fence with more texture and the grayish color and we’ll have that to you as soon as the landscaping is finalized so that it can all be put in one package.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just to that point, is Steve Coleman still here?  Yes, because Steve Coleman is reviewing all of the landscaping and he’s back-and-forth with the landscape consultant.  So, it’s being reviewed.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair it was brought to my attention I didn’t address one of Ms. Pandolfino’s questions about traffic.  We actually, as I’ve said, submitted a traffic report and I know your traffic consultant is here this evening.  Rather then having to insist upon him coming back to make another presentation we would be pleased if Mr. Canning would be able to present to the Board so that we can hear his comments.  We actually asked our traffic consultant, Bill Fitzpatrick to be here as well if we could just try to clear that up for purposes of the public hearing.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what are you thinking with the Board on that?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded absolutely.

Mr. Robert Foley stated yes I’d like to hear from Mr. Canning.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the Board seems to be amenable to that so we’re good.

Mr. John Canning stated I work for Adler Consulting the traffic engineering and transportation planning firm located in White Plains.  We have reviewed the traffic study provided to your Board by the applicant.  We’ve visited the site, we’ve visited the applicant’s facility in Elmsford.  It’s a facility that I have known about for over 20 years.  We’ve looked at information in our files for similar facilities and though not quite an exact comp. the Cook contractor’s yard up the street is somewhat similar in the nature of traffic activity.  We provided you our findings in a report dated June 14th.  As you know the facility is an existing facility, it has been in more or less continuous operation quite some time.  It’s located on the state highway.  If you’ve been to the site you’ll notice that to the left and right of the driveway there is significant sight distance.  We measured it.  It’s approximately 600 feet in either direction which is adequate for both cars and trucks to turn on and off of the highway.  One recommendation we would have would be that any condition of approval require that areas on either side of the driveway not be landscaped with tall vegetation.  The traffic study indicates that the facility will generate an additional approximately 20 peak hour trips during the morning and evening period.  Approximately 20% of these will be five-axle or large trucks, 20% will be three-axle and the remainder will be two-axle trucks.  We have reviewed the intersection capacity analyses and while it was done according to correct methodologies and procedures and it does indicate that acceptable levels of service will be maintained.  We noted in our report that based on our experience we have some reservations about the ability of the capacity analysis produced by the Federal Highway Administration to accurately measure the impact of trucks, specifically when you’re looking at a truck driveway.  So, what we have recommended in our report is that once the operation is up and running as it is that at the discretion of the Director of Technical Services within a specified time period the applicant come back to this Board with a delay study to indicate how long actually it takes trucks to get out onto the highway as compared to what the intersection capacity analyses says and in addition we note that the applicant has indicated that activity at the facility is going to increase from approximately 450 tons per month to approximately 1,350 tons per month which means that it will generate the additional 22 trips that was mentioned in their study.  When that occurs it’s possible that you will have trucks looking to enter and exit the driveway at the same time so before that happens we would like, in addition to the delay study, to have a truck classification study to know if it is 20% five-axle, and 20% three-axle and at that time we can make a determination that the driveway is adequately designed for the facility going forward.  Those basically are the findings of our report and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I want to compliment you this time on the report.  I think it was very understandable for a Board member or a lay person and it was a pretty good standalone document and you didn’t have to track back to other numbers and figures.  I do have two or three quick questions.  What you just said now about the increase of the vehicles onto 9A, in your report you refer to the posted speed limits which a lot of the traffic consultants do.  Would it have been better to have factored in the actual speed of passing vehicles on 9A?  I know it’s a 30 mph zone, unless there’s a lot of backup, bumper-to-bumper traffic people are usually going 40 mph.  What kind of a difference would that have made to actually have the actual speeds of the traffic not just the posted speeds?  And also when you mentioned the different axle trucks: the five, the three, etc coming out, especially coming out of the site, I guess the trucks may be the same, you have factored in the heavily laden vehicle but the drivers may be a little different.  Did you factor in an average amount of time that the driver would take to pull out safely into the stream of traffic and then move along?  I’m not sure you did here or whether that’s something that could be done.  I do know you’ve pointed out that as the volume increases, the tonnage increases at the site that you’re asking for further review which you just stated.  I think those two things; the actual speed of vehicles on 9A probably would have made this a little better, more accurate rather than just posted speeds and then the real safe egress of the trucks out: how long, how many seconds?  I know you increased the number of seconds here on page 3 and 4 or you’ve explained it further in your report which I appreciate.  You mentioned the Elmsford site which I’ve seen and I’ve looked at the applicant’s site plan with the rear axles of the trucks, the swath, the turning ratio or swath, whatever you want to call it, from both southbound and northbound.  My concern is on the southbound lane for trucks that would be entering going south on 9A.  If they are prevented from getting in right away,  how is that controlled?  They just wait for no more cars coming but if there’s a backup of cars going south and if it’s in the morning hour when people are rushing to get to the Cortlandt train station how much of a problem will that be?  There isn’t any turn lane, it’s a two-lane road with a shoulder I believe.  That’s another concern I have.  Otherwise, I appreciate the report.  I thought it was very good and also considering the future reviews. 
Mr. John Canning responded I did give consideration to two of the three questions.  The first two questions and the third one I haven’t had the chance to think about.  With regard to the sight distance, if the sight distance was not 600 feet in either direction we would have required a speed study to determine whether it was 35, 40, 42 miles per hour but the intersection sight distance, the safe stopping sight distance requirement which is the minimum standard is 250 feet for a 35 mph roadway, it’s something like 325 feet for a 40 mph roadway, it’s 600 feet for a 55 mph roadway.  So, there’s definitely adequate stopping sight distance at the driveway and that’s why we didn’t ask to know what the actual speeds were.  There’s a second criteria when you look at driveways.  In addition to stopping sight distance which is to see if a car can stop safely if somebody pulls out and stalls.  There’s what’s known as intersection sight distance and the purpose of that, according to the DOT, is to allow somebody to turn out, enter the traffic stream and accelerate to within the 85th percentile of the operating speed without the following car having to slow down.  To put that in laymen’s terms if the speed limit is 35 mph it’s enough sight distance to allow somebody to turn out and accelerate to 30 mph without the guy who’s coming down the road having to slow down less than 30 mph.  Its primary purpose, although there are safety elements to it, is so that you can preserve the progression of traffic on the state highways.  You don’t want a multitude of driveways and you have to slow down to 10 mph every time you encounter somebody turning out.  The posted speed limit is 35 mph and the intersection sight distance is for 35 mph is 600 feet or 595 feet so it has stopping distance by a long shot and it has the intersection sight distance exactly for 35 mph.  If it were more basically what you’re doing is you’re encouraging people to go faster than 35 mph so we didn’t see that there was a real need or benefit to want people to travel faster than 35 mph then have to slow down to 30 mph if trucks are turning out.  I hope that answers the sight distance question and the speed.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but you’re saying you didn’t actually have to do an actual speed count?

Mr. John Canning responded in my opinion they didn’t because the sight distances were so great.  They absolutely met the stopping sight distance and they met the intersection which is a more rigorous of the two as well.  With regard to the time that it takes a truck from rest to turn out onto the street that is specifically what I was concerned about with the intersection capacity analyses that was provided in the traffic study.  As I say the traffic study was done exactly as it’s supposed to be according to the Federal Highway Administration’s guidelines but based on my experience and you know, you’ve all seen trucks pull out onto the road.  If a heavily laden truck tries to pull out it takes time to get started.  We ran an analysis and we talked about it in our report where we assumed that instead, and I’m going from memory, 6.4 seconds for a car to turn out it was going to take a truck twice that length or almost 13 seconds and we assume that 20% of them will be five-axle and then we assumed another 20% would be three-axle instead of taking 6.4 seconds it would take 9.6 seconds or something for those guys.  When we did that analysis we found that if you add 22 cars to the driveway that the delays coming out are going to start to creep up to levels that would perhaps be concerning and that’s why we have suggested that the applicant do a delay study, not now because there’s very little activity, but once they get a little bit more activity they do a delay study to see how long it actually takes the trucks to go out then we can go back and take a look at their projections in our letter and if we said it was 12.8 seconds and they find it’s 11 seconds, we say okay it’s fine, if they find it’s 17 seconds then we’ve got to reassess.  With regard to the southbound left turning trucks; the left turn movement from a major road onto a driveway or a minor road is the easiest movement that requires a stop to be made for a couple of reasons: 1) because you only have one lane of traffic to deal with.  If you’re making a left turn out of the site you have to deal with two lanes of traffic, if you’re making a right turn out of the site yes you only have to deal with one lane of traffic which is the same as the left turn in, but if you’re making a right turn out of the site, not only do you have to deal with that one lane of traffic but again you have to speed up to the operating speed of the highway.  When you’re turning left off the highway you don’t, you just got to get off the highway and you’re done.  When we look at the intersection capacity analyses it indicates that there will be a minimal delay for vehicles turning left off the highway into the site.  while trucks will obviously be longer than cars based on their projections there’s an additional approximately 22 trips per hour will be added, approximately 50% to the north, 50% to the south so that’s 11 to the north, 11 to the south and approximately 50% entering and 50% exiting so you’ll end up with 5 trucks an hour.  I don’t think that it’s going to have a significant adverse impact but certainly if they’re coming back to look at the delays that could be one of the things that they look at.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I would have a question about if that delay study should show that there were stacking problems, what would be the way to mitigate that?  To make it less problematic?

Mr. John Canning responded depending on where the stacking was.  If the stacking was on the driveway, as long as it didn’t block the driveway it’s really not an impact to the public.  If the stacking is on the roadway then the answer would be to provide a left turn lane so that the vehicles can wait in the left turn lane and through traffic can pass.  There is what are known as harmer link warrants which compare three values: the left turning volume, the volume that’s supposing left turning vehicles and the volume that’s following left turning vehicles.  It compares those three in a ratio and depending on the answer and the speed limit it comes up with a probability that there will be conflict.  Obviously, if there’s nobody coming against you, you won’t have to stop so it really is not an issue.  If there’s nobody coming behind you, there’s nobody to run in the back of you so it’s not an issue.  If there’s only one car making a left turn as compared to 100 cars making a left turn, it’s a minimal issue.  We can certainly have the applicant look at the harmer link warrants to see based on the number of vehicles northbound, southbound and turning whether a left turn lane would be warranted or we could have them come back when they’re doing the delay studies and indicate how many vehicles stopped to turn left into the site and how long each of them had to wait.  Whichever is your preference. 
Mr. John Bernard asked if a left turn was required is there room for a left turn lane?

Mr. John Canning responded that would have to be looked at.  They do seem to have quite a bit of property frontage so you could shift the northbound lane over – there’s already a road there for most of it which it probably was the old road, or I don’t know what it’s from so I would imagine that it’s feasible from an engineering perspective.  I would, frankly, from a commitment of resources perspective I would like to see that it was warranted before you invest all this capital in a turn lane that’s hardly ever used. 

Mr. John Bernard asked and that is a state road?

Mr. John Canning responded it is a state road. 

Mr. John Bernard asked would that make it more difficult to get an approval for?

Mr. John Canning responded that depends.  The state knows what they’re doing so you go to them with an application and they say ‘it complies with our criteria or it doesn’t if you change this.’  If you were doing it on a town road the town engineer may not have criteria and he may not be sure whether it’s satisfactory.  He may have to send it out to me or somebody else so it could be easier.  Really what it depends on is how much frontage you have and they seem to have…

Mr. Robert Foley stated there’s also a plan within the Town, the Montrose Improvement Plan or whatever it’s called where we asked at the last meeting, or I did, I asked Mr. Vergano about a sidewalk and he said it would be across which would be on the southbound side so I don’t know if that would take up some of that room on the other side, the southbound side.

Mr. John Canning responded I don’t know what the separation from the edge of the roadway to the right-of-way is and I’m not familiar with the condition of the roadway on the southbound side so I really couldn’t answer at this point.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I wish there was more room in the front.  There’s a lot of talk about the fence and everything which is great but I wish that building but it’s too late, had not been refurbished and that that had been moved back or demolished and they’ve have more ‘Q’ room coming north where the trucks would pull in there and then go in the gate but their building is almost up against the road there. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else in the audience who has a question or a comment to make?

Mr. John Debenedictis stated 35 Wesminster Drive.  I don’t even know where to start because there’s so much going on here.  First of all, in my hand, I have the Montrose Enhancement Plan and if you go through it you’ll see some nice drawings, what the Town would like to do to Montrose.  They would like to enhance the Baghdad Road which we call 9A but all in the prospects of making Montrose a much nicer place environmentally and visually to live in.  No place does it say we are looking for to enhance another junkyard.  When you say a junkyard, Kauffman’s operated that thing for 30 or 40 years I don’t really know but I know they did it for at least 30 that I know of.  If we call this environmentally correct then they must have been doing everything environmentally wrong and I’m sure they were.  I’m sure they were dumping all kinds of lubricants on the ground, there was probably diesel fuel, gasoline, refrigerants, all kinds of break fluids, everything going into that ground.  Has this site been tested and thoroughly checked out to see that what happened to all this stuff for 40 years?  Where did it go?  Is it still sitting there?  Does that make it okay just to come in now and do something environmentally correct?  Are we going to build a building that has a containment building?  I’ve seen this done in the aviation industry where if you’re going to use any kind of contaminants they now have to have buildings with completely enclosed systems to collect any of these lubricants, any of these toxics, that stuff comes around and you collect it in an enclosed system.  Are they going to take these cars, put them in a clean building and take them apart or do we take them apart out on the dirt out there like Kauffman’s used to do we’d put a few drip pans underneath them?  What is the difference between the environmentally correct way of doing this and the not environmentally correct way?  As I said in the aviation industry now it’s all enclosed any time you’re doing any kind of work like this and very intricate collection systems especially in the painting industry.  We’ve got that, now you say they’re going to put up a wall, well go down and drive by Sing Sing it looks like just the same thing.  You can put up a 20 foot wall and you’re just driving by Sing Sing.  Again, it’s not pleasing to look at and according to the Montrose Enhancement Plan I don’t see how that’s going to help Montrose.  Now, you talk about the road to Baghdad, it’s a narrow two-lane road.  Try and come out of Premier Club or drive up-and-down the road when people are trying to come out of the Premier Club and make a left turn, it’s not a three or four second wait, it can be a long wait.  Add the school busses in the afternoons and it becomes a longer wait.  These cars, if this is going to be the recycled junk car capital of Westchester, are people going to drive them in and then say ‘take them apart?’  Or are they going to come like I said all these trucks – are they going to come in these big truck carriers?  When that truck carrier is trying to come out of that road on that left it’s not going to be again, a short time, it’s going to be a while because that baby’s got to go out and he’s going to make a hard turn to go down and make a left turn even if he makes a right turn.  If he makes a right turn I don’t know where he’s going.  Is he going to go to Montrose to the Montrose Deli and get a cup of coffee?  What’s he going to do with that thing?  This is just the same old stuff.  If we’re going to have an enhancement plan and we had a junkyard that was visually really terrible, it really was, and you had all that stuff going on down there well what’s changed except now you’re going to do it environmentally correct.  Is this place, like I said, has it been cleaned?  Can little kids go out there and dig in the dirt?  If it becomes the environmental junk car capital of Westchester isn’t that going to increase the amount of traffic down there?  In other words, if they think it’s going to have 22 trucks or 23, whatever the gentleman said, if it grows you’re going to get cars coming from other counties and that’s going to increase it and again you’re on a two-lane road and there is no room to make any kind of changes on there.  It’s been that way for 50 years, who knows.  Certainly the state doesn’t do anything to it.  It needs to be repaved.  When’s the last time the state did anything to it and the whole project is just again one of these things that says there’s no consideration for where the Town is going.  Right now the Town is trying to get Con Edison not to drain that lake for the same kind of reasons trying to keep the Town in a residential environment and in order to do some of this stuff we need to stop allowing this stuff to go on and not encourage it.  This is just another one of these schemes.  Before we had the composting stuff and then we had Cooks’ who was going to have the heavy equipment graveyard he was going to put down there.  All this stuff keeps constantly coming up and I think it has to stop.  It ought to stop here.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated quite frankly, you haven’t been there.  I think you might be a good candidate to go on this tour because you might find it informative.  They do a really good tour and you could therefore go and see how this is done.  It might be very informational for you.  

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I wonder if we could set up another site meeting and a site visit and then invite the public at that time if the applicant is willing to set up another Sunday morning?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Bernard, Madame Chair I’m happy to take that information back to my client provided we can do it and continue moving forward because when you listen to someone like Mr. Debenedictis who I listened to at many a meeting here and though he’s often entertaining he’s usually right on with the facts.  In this situation it’s unfortunate that he neglects to acknowledge a couple of quick things: 1) my client just bought this property a little over a year ago so the allegations that were made were about somebody else and the public should not be misled into thinking that somehow it was Brookfield.  2) The contamination, you all know and the public should be very well aware that your professional staff should be credited because when I called your staff about getting a fence and some landscaping up front the first thing that I was told by Mr. Kehoe and by Mr. Vergano was to contact the DEC and make sure they came out immediately because there had been a transfer of ownership to make sure that they were aware of the clean-up that was going on.  I know you’re aware and your staff is aware that as a result of their actions the DEC came out, came out with my client and my client’s professional team and were extremely pleased that something that had been in the Town and in your backyard, John, for 30 years was being addressed by my client at my client’s expense.  3) You’re right Madame Chair, the very intricate collection system that you know he was talking about, you saw it.  You all saw it when you came out.  And lastly, really what we’re trying to do, we’re trying to get a processing pad put out there so that we can do more of this work on a processing pad and not the way it had been done.  Right now, no vehicle as you saw is being drained or being touched other than inside that small building in the middle of the property.  I appreciate your comment Madame Chair because people who are not fully informed may not realize.  It’s wonderful to carry the banner of sustainability and green technology but when you’re finally ready to try to do it and you meet resistance it’s frustrating.

Mr. John Bernard asked so how can we win?  Can we get the public out there to be able to see what you’ve all seen?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded John, as soon as I can speak to my client who’s out of town right now, he didn’t want us to adjourn the hearing because he wanted the public to have the chance to continue to move forward and speak, I will get you an answer.  You saw how willing he was to have people come through and I know Tom Malone and Brookfield are proud of what they do so if John and Susan and others want to see it I’m pretty confident we’ll be able to take care of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else in the audience who wants to comment on this?

Ms. Susan Pandolfino stated the traffic report was very understandable for the one business but we’re adding 700 cars from the train station.  We have asphalt trucks, we have cement trucks, we have the trucks from the Cook property, we have the school busses and we have all the little contractor yards with their trucks that are all lined up in the same corridor.  How is that going to work?  How is that going to work?
Mr. John Canning responded just as a matter of fact.  The traffic study that was performed included traffic from a number of other projects including the train station.  Again, I’m going from memory but I think it was something like 150 cars an hour were added to Route 9A associated with the train station primarily and other projects, in evaluating the site driveway.  Route 9A is already a relatively heavily truck-trafficked road and as indicated in the study this application will add up to 22 per hour which will be an increase in truck traffic and they won’t all be trucks but it will be an increase in truck traffic but it won’t change the nature of traffic activity on Route 9A.  Certainly, there are concerns with traffic on the corridor but I don’t think they’re necessarily strictly applicable to this application, it’s more of a growth along the corridor question in general.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what did you say on the truck per day was 5 to 7 only John?

Mr. John Canning responded in the peak hour it would be an additional 22 trips of those 20% will be larger trucks five axles so 10% of 22 is about 4 or 5 will be larger trucks.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the total per day or per hour?

Mr. John Canning responded the total per hour is 22 vehicles and you could guess that 15 of those will be those and 5 of them will be large trucks, per day, my guess would be under 200.

Mr. Robert Foley stated per day, somewhere in the area of 200.

Mr. John Canning stated that would be 100 trucks would arrive, drop material off and then leave.

Mr. Robert Foley stated those numbers aren’t in your report here.

Mr. John Canning responded it’s an estimate based on my experience.  Typically, we look at peak hour traffic because if it works during the peak hour it’ll work during the less busy hours of the day.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you want a full day answer Mr. Foley that’s why Mr. Fitzpatrick’s here because John’s right, as a traffic engineer, he’s focused on the worst two hours of the day for empirical purposes but Mr. Fitzpatrick has the benefit of calculating and knowing the trips that are generated at the Elmsford facility and in knowing what’s genuinely projected at this facility.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t have his report in front of me but was it cited in your report?

Mr. Bill Fitzpatrick responded it was included.  Just my background so you know I spent 35 years with the New York State DOT as the Director of Traffic Engineering and Safety, there were 7 counties including Westchester County so I know the state highways, I know the procedures, I know the criteria for all of this and our report basically dealt with the peak hours of 22 trips per peak hour and as John indicated, we focus on the peak hours simply because the background traffic is higher and so any interaction is going to have the worst impact during the peak hours.  This particular facility there will be times, we predict, that the morning will be our heaviest time and it will slow down in the afternoon.  Although we’re going to come back in a year and really take a look at our forecast, we’re forecasting much less than 200 vehicles per day, more along the lines of about 100 to 120 vehicles in total a day.  Again, we’ve committed to come back in a year’s time approximately when we’re up and running efficiently and take another look and we’ll do a delay study, we’ll look at the left turn movements.  I will say in response to the question about right-of-way, Route 9A has very limited right-of-way so any mitigation with a left turn lane or any other type of lane to get traffic into the facility is going to have to deal with limited right-of-way and what we have along the frontage of our own property.  We’ll know more about that in about a year’s time.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much.  Anyone else?  Ivan?

Mr. Ivan Kline asked I had one question for the applicant, does your DEC Permit require you to weigh everything that comes into the site that you accept?

Mr. Tom Malone stated everything that comes in goes on the scale.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated as you’ve Mr. Malone explain the notion that people just bring things there and leave them there it’s actually not the way the business operates.  Everything that comes through the door gets paid for so it’s to my client’s benefit to weigh so he knows how much metal is coming in and therefore knows how much is going out for economic purposes.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I guess my question was aimed at, do you ever just say ‘all right this is a medium sized air conditioner I know we give you 10 bucks for that just drop it off there thank you’ and not weigh the object because the traffic report, or the recommendations from Adler all geared around a per ton limitation but if things are coming in and thus there are additional vehicle trips and items are not being weighed then it becomes not the best way to achieve the limitation. 

Mr. Jim Ulrich responded we can certainly dig into that.  I can say, and our client’s not here tonight.  Everything, in many occasions I’ve been there, everything that came in the gate went across the scale even someone with a washing machine in the back of their minivan and basically that’s the business plan of how it operates is to foster growth of the business is to pay for everything across the scale and the people that are bringing it know they’re getting an equitable deal.  As far as I know everything that comes across is weighed and the traffic – Bill can speak to that, but I know in helping Tom and Bill develop the criteria for the study it factors in a broad range of vehicles from cars to pickups to people bringing in a washer to a tow truck or a flatbed with a single vehicle and then, again, a flatbed with a vehicle towed behind which is a very typical configuration for vehicles to be recycled up to the five-axle vehicle.  So the whole range is taken into consideration.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this public hearing to the September meeting, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question, I don’t think it was mentioned, one of the reasons for the adjournment is for the storm water pollution plan that’s being worked on with our consultant and the applicant.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated just so you’re familiar, there is another report that we’re waiting to get from our consultant and that’s one of the reasons we’re adjourning this until September.  If there’s somebody else at a later date who wants to talk in September there will be at least that opportunity to do so.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated the storm water, the WSP Cells that we received tonight, or just got, is that the one you’re talking about?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they’ve already reviewed the report, those are their comments then the applicant has to revise the report submit it back.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 7-10      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Valeria Development Corporation for Preliminary & Final Plat Approval and for Amended Site Development Plan Approval for changes to Section III for an amendment to 18 of the 147 approved lots at Valeria to allow their development as six (6) “threeplex” units rather than three (3) “sixplex” units and for the elimination of Lot 155, the reconfiguration of Lot 153 and for a modification of Lot 152 and for modifications to the approved recreation facilities and modifications to the size and materials of 4 of 6 model types as shown on a 42 page set of drawings entitled “Valeria” prepared by Joseph Riina, P.E. latest revision dated May 2010 and on an 8 page set of floor plans and elevations prepared by EDI Architecture, PC latest revisions dated February 3, 2009 and May 18, 2010 (see prior PB 18-98).

Mr. Bill Zutt stated I’m joined tonight by Mark Eickelbeck and John Nemeth of Valeria Development Corp.  For the benefit of the members of the public who may not be aware of the history I’ll go through it very briefly.  Approximately three years ago your Board granted final subdivision plat approval for 147 three simple townhouse units, clustered on approximately 45 acres of the Valeria property leaving approximately 600 and some odd acres as vacant open space.  Conditions of that approval included the creation of a number of conservation easements all of which have been executed and filed.  Necessary fees have been paid, conditions of approval met and the final plat was indeed signed and has been filed with Westchester County Clerk.  We’re here tonight requesting a relatively minor modification to the final plat, specifically, the 18 units that were approved as three sixplex units in the area of section 3 closest to Furnace Dock Road.  We’re requesting permission to alter the configuration of those 18 units from 3 sixplexes into 6 threeplexes and in order to achieve that configuration we need to take a little bit of acreage from former open space parcel B, I believe it was lot #155 and incorporate it into the reconfiguration of those 18 units.  The net consequence of this would be to actually increase the amount of undisturbed area, preserve any number of trees from removal and basically retain the general configuration of the buildings but reduce their massing and reduce their visual impact from Furnace Dock Road and from within the project itself.  In addition to that relief, we’re also seeking permission to reduce in size on a selective basis some of the originally approved townhome units and that’s a request that’s dictated by economic and practical considerations with which everyone in this room is familiar.  We can’t identify at the moment those specific lots that would result in reduced sized units that would be market driven at the time that the units are offered for sale.  What would happen, however, is that upon the sale of the first unit in any given cluster all remaining units would be at that same size.  In addition, we’re requesting a modification in the siding material from cement board to vinyl but without changing the color which was originally approved by your Board and was endorsed by the Architectural Review Committee.  These applications have gone before the Architectural Review Committee and we have a letter supporting the request to change in addition to Westchester Land Trust which is the beneficiary of the conservation easements, has also expressed its support for these minor modifications.  The impact on the only involved conservation easement would be very, very nominal.  It would be conservation easement parcel B which is actually probably the smallest of the three or four major conservation easements that were created.  Finally, the recreational component of the originally approved project is one that was negotiated with the existing Dickerson Pond Association consisting of the 80 unit owners and the existing phases I and II of the Valeria project.  As a result of negotiations with the homeowners association and the apparent need for enhancement to existing recreational facilities as opposed to the addition of new ones, an agreement has been entered into which would fundamentally shift the recreational component of the project from added facilities to enhanced and larger existing facilities.  The details of that were all set forth in a summary that was prepared and submitted with our application.  I believe I mentioned, I’ll repeat it again and if not, 76 of the 80 Valeria unit owners have endorsed the application before your Board and the various elements that I have mentioned and at this point I would be happy to turn this over to the public since this is a public hearing.  Thank you very much. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as you heard, this is a public hearing and at this point if there is anyone in the audience who has a comment to make, this is the time.  Please come up, introduce yourself, and provide us with your location or your unit number and feel free.

Mr. Brian Butler stated from Oxbow Associates and I do have some graphics here.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you need to give us a little more information on Oxbow and what we’re doing. 

Mr. Brian Butler responded I certainly will.  I’m the president of Oxbow Associates.  We’re an environmental consulting firm from Massachusetts and we specialize in wetlands permitting and rare endangered species evaluations permitting and so forth.  I would want to preface this with I’m not a hired gun or a torpedoist hired to bash projects or preempt projects, stop projects, quite the contrary.  What I do on a daily basis is forward projects to achieve Permits under state and federal and local regulations often involving wildlife either rare and endangered or otherwise.  I’m here today to examine the eastern box turtles upon which a lot of the permitting that preceded tonight was predicated.  Going back to earlier discussions in 2001, I reviewed the transcripts of various materials on this matter and the earliest one, Susan Todd, one of your members or former members I assume was expounding on the box turtles as an outstanding natural resource for the Town of Cortlandt.  I came here last month to review the site.  I reviewed it as I said and a large amount of the material and if I’ve done enough biography I guess I can stop here.  As examples we’ve recently done permitting and construction oversight in New York State for the Orange/Rockland utilities with regard to timber rattle snake protection during a re-conductoring and during a re-poll placement on a utility line there.  We’ve worked with CHA who’s plan was up here before on a long term very successful box turtle conservation plan involving the transmodal commercial facility for rail truck transfer of commercial materials.  We’ve worked in all the New York and all the New England States except Maine on projects of similar nature.  That’s sort of what I do.  It’s a bashing project, not being a hired gun to criticize other’s work but it’s – on a routine basis I make projects fit the Permits and then I make sure the projects do comply with the Permit obligations that were offered up or imparted upon them.  I came here last month to look at the site after reviewing some of the material and subsequent to my site visit I’ve reviewed more of the materials, as you know is quite voluminous going back to the early parts of the last decade.  I reviewed the turtle pen, the enclosure pen across Furnace Brook Road and the area in the village and section 3 and section 4 of the proposed new additions to the Valeria site.  Doctor Clemens was heavily involved in this.  Michael Clemens is a well known turtle authority and conservationist, was involved from the very early stages of this project.  Steve Coleman worked on behalf of the Town for this also and everyone’s opinions seemed to be very much the same as what I’ve arrived at independently and now after I review all this material I see that we’re all kind of speaking from the same hymnal.  In the Permits going back to the draft EIS and the final EIS and SEQRA filings and the local Planning Board approvals all were to my understanding predicated upon and effective and meaningful box turtle conservation plan owing to the outstanding nature of this population that was found to be extampt at the Valeria site.  unfortunately, in the intervening years since 2004 or thereabouts, there’s been a lot of work done, probably a lot of money expended on the part of the applicant but nothing has come of that from a conservation standpoint or from a conservation knowledge standpoint.  A lot of the animals are just displaced across the Furnace Dock Road to the enclosure to the pen.  The pen unfortunately was never maintained so it was kind of like putting water in a bucket, it depends on how many holes you have in it and how big the holes are and how fast the water’s going to fun out and that’s essentially what’s happened over across Furnace Dock Road.  There was no follow through or limited follow through on the monitoring of that so 28 odd animals that should be living to an age of 100 years and non-perturbed circumstance so they’re able to replace themselves in the population have been up and displaced like POW’s and placed in a pen and then whether or not their fate is uncertain they die in place or they die trying to escape like a POW.  Did they escape and die on the road trying to get back to Valeria?  What their fate is is completely unknown.  There was an awful lot of money spent on the part of the proponence, unfortunately to really no conservation benefit either specific to the Valeria site or to box turtle conservation in the northeast in general.  It’s unfortunate.  What we see that the value that continuing that penning operation seems questionable at best and my recommendation would be to abandon that and to disable the fence so that they could at least take the wire components away from it, the post and rail split rail fence that remains there is benign and can be left in place rather than have to expend additional monies to remove it but it’s really not doing what it was intended to do nor is it giving data in the general case to: does this work, does this not work, because of the lack of monitoring.  The pen is right here on the west side of – the eastern box turtle is not an endangered species in New York State.  It is different from much of the other extinct wildlife in that has low annual reproductive output, reproduces at a late age so it replaces itself in the population probably in the order of 30 or 40 years.  If we were trying to raise white tailed deer on Valeria, we could have a heard of 2,500 animals in 10 years.  If you’re trying to do the same experiment with eastern box turtles you’d have only a handful of breeding adults after that same exercise.  It’s not like fruit flies and dinosaurs or elephants, you can’t manipulate and conserve these with the same efficacy as you can say a white tailed deer or a turkey or other wildlife.  One of the standing features of this site is this nesting era.  The 600 acres, and that’s been expounded on by many as being a great conservation measure and I concur entirely with that.  This is Furnace Dock Road, Sniffin Mountain is down here or thereabouts, this is the northwestern extreme of this property.  We found, and it was also observed by Mr. Coleman and Doctor Clemens, a nesting area in this area where there’s a little dirt bike track in a former dumping area.  Box turtles go for disturbed open canopy habitat for nesting and they may come distances of in excess of a kilometer.  The eastern part of the conserved portion of Valeria is out here, animals may be coming from far field to nest in this one particular area because it has open canopy, disturbed soils and well drained soils.  Unfortunately, the plan is to – this is a slightly different perspective of that same drawing showing the easement on the most recent modifications to the conservation restrictions of open space parcel B.  We’ve graphically colored it here – this rectangle here is approximately an open space D is all this land here inclusive of the buffer zone around the section 3.  That’s all well and good but the allowance in this area that seems to be in stark contrast with the requirements and the intent of the Permit approvals would allow this to be a maintenance and tailings and leaf litter and mulch equipment facility storage and putting that right on top of the only extent known nesting area on the easterly side of Furnace Dock Road which is the majority of the 600 acre or all of the 600 acre preserve site is throwing the baby out with the bath water is one analogy or if you wanted to start a farm and you decided you’d start by burning all your seed stock that’s kind of what we’re doing here by recycling this one particular three-acre portion of the site.  We’re eliminating a critical resource here to that population and probably negating an awful lot of the conservation value of the 600 acre set aside and all the other measures and historic measures and expenses that the applicant has undergone.  What I’m advocating tonight, in discussion with the Nelson’s, is this should not be allowed to have pass.  This is a conservation snafu of the highest order to say we’re setting aside all this land, doing all these heroic measures in some cases to preserve land, to preserve the eastern box turtle population extinct here and then we’re pulling the rug out from under them by taking away the usability and the availability of the nesting area.  Further, if you were to just use this area as a maintenance facility and so forth you’d be disturbing additional habitat and baiting animals in so you’d making more nesting habitat, baiting animals that would smell that disturbed soil, come in, use the mulch piles and so forth and two weeks later the mulch is taken off-site or turned around or whatever they do with compost so those eggs would be lost to the ages as well.  This is a major oversight.  I’m not sure that the etiology of it is but in terms of conservation biology all the good is gone to this is in a big way negated by this particular effort here.  I did prepare a report for the Planning Board’s benefit.  I believe you all were provided with copies of that.  This is the entire parcel D and this is the permission or the amendment to the CR that I don’t understand how exactly it transpired.  I did discuss it briefly with Mr. Coleman earlier before the meeting and it seemed to be something of a surprise to him as well.  I’d ask you to confer with the Town’s consultant as far his understanding of what would transpire here versus what actually has transpired in amendment.
Mr. Ivan Kline asked let’s accept that there’s some issue as to the effectiveness of the plan for the box turtle.  Is there something about the applicant’s proposing that’s before us that is going to make things worse?  In other words, the specific changes that the applicant’s counsel went through and that are listed in the agenda item, is there something about that actual conduct changing sixplexes into threeplexes, reducing the size of certain units, the recreational thing, and changing the materials, anything about that in your view is going to make things worse for the box turtles.

Mr. Brian Butler responded no, although in my experience when you go to amended Permit that’s an outstanding Permit of the time for reconciliation of any other shortcomings or outstanding compliance issues, that’s usually a good time to get the applicant’s attention.  Specifically to your question, no it’s incidental.  The issues at hand and my concerns personally, again not as a project basher but as project proponent and a compliance proponent are the use of this land seems to be completely inconsistent with the whole conservation ethic.  This Board, or its predecessors required in the approval of this project, this flies in the face of that.  It’s not just me, I think if you look at Doctor Klemens’s materials, Steve Coleman’s materials going back to 2003, 2004 his baseline study and so forth this is a very important area and this should be preserved and I think it was the Planning Board’s intent to preserve this originally.  I think this was allowed as an oversight.  I’m assuming that.  I don’t know that factually.  The other critical areas that should be considered and addressed and resolved with the Planning Board at this time is the isolation of the project.  The plan has always been to clear section 3 prior to the construction, that’s a standard procedure, it’s been partially done but unfortunately economic conditions seemed to have slowed the progress or as it has been the case with many projects.  There should be clear but more importantly or as importantly should be isolated for the construction period so that animals don’t immediately run back in there or immediately run in there when construction and think “hey that’s some nice disturbed soil I should be nesting in there.”  That’s a very critical component.  It was in numerous documents that I reviewed.  There was four or five bullet points and among them was that.  The final point that was also in the majority of documents and again, which I think was a condition of this approval is the permanent isolation of these villages, section 3 and section 4 at their completion a temporary fence should be removed and a permanent barrier should be placed in there and that would make this conservation effort a genuine, legitimate and somewhat outstanding conservation effort whereas in now it’s really of all the well intended planning, all the expense dedicated to it to date, unfortunately it really hasn’t been efficacious at all. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated let me try and make this simple.  It sounds like, if I understand everything that you’ve said and I thought I did, that two issues: 1) to ensure the enforcement of what is already been approved by this Board in terms of the construction and the protection and 2) the storage of leaves, organic material in an area that you’re calling area B that you’re saying is close to a nesting area and is that the appropriate area to put that material so it comes down to: is there a better place to put that material?

Mr. Brian Butler responded precisely and it’s not just close to it, it overlies. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated those are the two issues: can we find a better place to store organic material and make sure that we enforce everything that we’ve already agreed to over the 15 years that we’ve been working on this project?

Mr. Brian Butler responded exactly a fine summary.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I do think you raise the third issue which is what to do with the pen.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but again that’s not specific to this application that’s here before us that’s a sort of an ancillary issue that’s come up that we all recognize, Mr. Coleman and others through all the reports we received that there’s an issue across the street with what started out to be an experiment that’s gone awry I guess and I agree we have to deal with that. 

Ms. Bernice Nelson stated I’d like to speak to some of the issues which have been raised during Mr. Butler’s report of Oxbow Associates.  As you know, of all the people in this room, we are the longest to have been at Valeria.  We moved to Valeria in 1984 and raised our two children there and we care a great deal for Valeria.  I think the issue that’s been raised tonight, partly, as I’m hearing it is why is this issue being raised now?  Why is this something that should be before the Board when it is looking at an amended approval to delete new recreational facilities and move around some sixplexes and make them into triplexes?  Why now?  The reason why now is because this Board is governed by the State Environmental Review Act and as you know this Board took lead agency and undertook a very comprehensive review of this site which resulted in a final environmental impact statement in 2004, it resulted in a SEQRA findings statement in January 2005 which were all incorporated and referenced and conditioned as conditions in the final plat approval that was granted in May of 2007 and one of the main conditions as addressed in the final environmental impact statement in the SEQRA findings statement, in the preliminary and final plat approval was a box turtle protection plan.  This was recommended as early as 2001 and it is documented through many attachments to the FEIS as appendices which were prepared by Doctor Clemens and by Steven Coleman, who’s with us I believe tonight.  In those documents and the SEQRA findings statement references a report that was prepared by Mr. Coleman in 2003 called a Natural Resources Inventory Biodiversity Assessment and Management Plan which specifically stated that “the northern section of area B” at that time it was called B this is very confusing there are all these letters but it’s now open space parcel D, it’s what you see here which is colored.  “The northern section of area B should be permanently protected in its entirety.  Of particular importance is the control of off road vehicular use and illegal dumping within the northern section.”  In the SEQRA findings statement and in January of ’05 that specifically stated “the report further notes for section 3 that a comprehensive management and protection plan be prepared in particular with regard to the control of off road vehicular use and illegal dumping within the northern section.”  This is a response to comments regarding these issues at the DEIS hearing.  It states in this comment “the applicant agrees with this recommendation and has retained Doctor Michael Clemens to determine appropriate management and protection measures.  Unfortunately, even though these were conditions and mitigation measures set forth in the FEIS, in the SEQRA findings statement, as referenced in the preliminary and final plat approval and even though a box turtle protection plan was prepared in good faith, and I must say I made some suggestions which were incorporated at that time when it was executed in April of 2008, not withstanding all of those good intentions there was an amendment to the conservation easement for this area which was undertaken in 2008 when I learned in 2008 that in fact this conservation easement was defective.  It was going to permit the conservation easement in – the entire area shown as green and orange here which is open space parcel D would allow dumping, would allow the storage of equipment and materials over the entire site.  I brought this to the attention of the developer, the Town and the Westchester Land Trust and they agreed that they would undertake an amendment to this to take care of this issue.  They met, unfortunately I was not part of that or maybe we could have resolved this a long time ago and wouldn’t be here tonight but what happened is that an amendment was made to the conservation easement which carved out the area exactly where as you have seen the box turtle nesting area as an area where the dumping would be continued to go on.  Also, the back of the townhouses would allow dumping, this is what is shown as orange, would allow dumping and the storage of equipment.  There is another wet place where this can go, it already exists, the orange part.  This area, I found out about this amendment after it was executed and I said ‘why did you do that? It’s three acres.’  I had been told that a very small area that would be found around the back of the townhouses which is these and I have learned tonight in speaking with the developer before this meeting that I think this was done intentionally.  I always gave the benefit of the doubt that it was a mistake that everyone had engaged in but I actually was told at the beginning of the meeting that this was intentionally done because it was always the intention to use that dumping area and then I gather there was no concern for the fact that Doctor Clemens, Steven Coleman and now our consultant have documented that this is the prime box turtle nesting area at Valeria.  I, as you know am an attorney, as I tried to do in June 2008 which would mean I wouldn’t be here tonight, I have drafted for you and you have in your packet a one-page second amendment to the conservation easement which will solve this problem.  What it will do in color terms because I believe in simple laws, I don’t like complex laws – the orange area as shown here would no longer be orange, it would be green, it would be added to the rest of this area where dumping and storage of equipment are not permitted and this only requires a very simple survey where we take out these three lines and a new description that instead of running around here, this runs straight down to Furnace Dock Road.  This can be done and it would retain the full orange area for storage of grass, parking of vehicles and anything else.  The developer, I just want to note, there is another conservation easement area which is called open space parcel B, very confusing, but it is around section 4 which is where the other townhouses, the 92 townhouses which are part of the 147 and it has numerous areas which are just like this orange.  They have language that allow the dumping of grass, the storage of equipment and the materials.  There is ample space that has been reserved at Valeria for these uses.  It does not need to use the three acres which is the box turtle nesting area of Valeria.
Mr. John Bernard stated Ms. Nelson, do you suppose that if they did require some additional space that some additional space that would be appropriate could be found?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded I’m sure it could, as I say, there is probably a good, I don’t know, but my guess would be at least 15 acres in section 3 and section 4 which is orange.  I’m using colors for simplicity but if you read those conservation easements you will find they are orange.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so your assertion is that conservation area B can be used not just for organic material but also for equipment storage?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded yes, I can read you the language from the conservation easement, the permitted uses in that area right now are: “sub-section 4.3D of the conservation easement…

Mr. John Bernard stated forgive me but just to simplify these are the changes to that conservation area that were made, you said, in ’08?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded no the conservation easement was executed in February of ’08.  When I learned about this in ’08 there was a first amendment made which was then executed in February of ’09.   It carved out the orange area where these particular activities reveal out to continue – the original conservation easement in 2008 which was executed had this entire area green, everything that you see in orange and green was orange.  It allowed the storage of equipment…
Mr. John Bernard asked and the amendments were done?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded in February of ’09.

Mr. John Bernard asked by whom?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded at that time put the storage in the box turtle area that’s here.  What I’m seeking is that this become green.

Mr. John Bernard stated I understand that.  The amendments were made by whom?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded the amendments were made by consultation, from my understanding, among the Town, the developer and the Westchester Land Trust.  I must say that I am not sure that anyone other than the developer knew what they meant.  Because, my understanding is that as stated earlier by Mr. Butler I don’t think that the Town’s consultant Mr. Coleman was given sufficient…

Mr. John Bernard stated well, we’ll let Mr. Coleman speak to that himself.  He’s here, perhaps he would care to speak to that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we would like to get Mr. Coleman’s input as well and then we will have to start defining the critical mass here what we have to do here tonight.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated for the record, I wanted to let you know that I was consulted at the end of 2008 by the Town staff to take a look at the conservation area B for putting in or continuing the use of a maintenance yard.  They have lawn clippings and debris that are stored in that area.  They asked us to take a look at it from a standpoint of what the impact would be on box turtle nesting area.  We did take a look at it.  The plan I did see at the time had approximately a 1 acre site that was going to be about 30 feet off of Furnace Dock Road. 

Mr. John Bernard asked is that the area we see here?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded it’s within conservation area B.  

Mr. John Bernard asked is that the area we see described on this map?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded no, well that represents approximately a 3 acre area which was negotiated with the conservation easement. 

Mr. John Bernard asked so you weren’t party to that?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I wasn’t part of that.  What I looked at was the 1 acre site and we made recommendations that…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where was the 1 acre site?

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that down by the townhouses?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded no, the 1 acre site, the existing – this is the existing area that’s used for lawn clippings and storage material now.  My recollection is there’s a plan put in to put in right close to Furnace Dock Road to carve out an approximately 1 acre site that would be used specifically for this storage of debris and material.  When I looked at that, one of the recommendations we made was that based on the area adjacent to the road it was not what we considered to be acceptable nesting habitat and that if it was fenced in and properly enclosed that it would be a compatible use of an ongoing use and that was the recommendation that was made. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked when you were involved it was a 1 acre by the road and it’s now turned into 3 acres as part of the agreement.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated I was not involved in the negotiation with the easement when it became 3 acres but my understanding from talking with the applicant tonight is that the easement does describe that smaller area for use as for storage of lawn clippings and debris so that needs to be clarified.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked and equipment?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I don’t recall ever a discussion on any equipment when I reviewed it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Steve, is the area you’re talking about have a chain, the wall ends along Furnace Dock Road and it’s kind of a low land where trucks could go in where there’s an old chain there and high grass?
Mr. Steve Coleman responded yes, that’s correct. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s like an old road that goes up to where the kids were using ATVs.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded yes, and it was blocked off with a chain.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked a chain?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded it was blocked off, the access road that comes off of Furnace Dock Road.  There’s an access road there that they use now.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s very difficult to see the topography there.  You’re talking about a low-lying area and then there’s [inaudible136:35].
Mr. Robert Foley stated there’s a chain, the walls end but there’s a busy, fast road (Furnace Dock Road) and it’s a straight-of-way but it looks like it’s an old logging or farm road with a low chain.  It’s not a gate or anything and that’s why I’m asking.  Is that the smaller area you’re talking about?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded from what I recall, yes. 

Mr. John Bernard asked as the Town’s consultant do you have a recommendation for us?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded I still think based on the review of that plan back in 2008 that it was the compatible use as long as the area was permanently – there was a barrier put around the outer perimeter so that it could be used as a maintenance yard but it would separate from any other activities. 

Mr. John Bernard asked and confined to the 1 acre not the 3 acres?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded that was my understanding is what they needed at the time or carved out was an approximate 1 acre site. 

Mr. John Bernard stated you’ve had a chance to look at this particular nesting area, is that a nesting area?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded as Mr. Butler indicated, box turtles do use disturbed areas and so that’s why we were concerned that there would be some type of permanent barrier to separate the activity to prevent the turtles from being attracted to – they like disturbed areas.  They do come into disturbed areas so that’s why I felt comfortable that we had some type of permanent barrier around the maintenance yard, that it would be an acceptable use within that area. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was reading something from Cortlandt Watch.  They sent the members of the Board an interesting article on the habits and habitat of these box turtles and I guess I think I came away from the reading of that with the sense that whatever you do to impose a spot for them or place for them, they reject, they go back to what they want to do no matter what.  If they can get out or break out or go across the road to get back this is what they do.  I was saying to the Board at the work session, I’m a little conflicted.  I think initially I thought ‘okay, let’s just move the box turtles across the road and let’s move on with the rest of this project.’  Clearly, I don’t know if people who do this for a living initially thought that they could just take the box turtles and move them across the street and it would be okay or move them into this particular enclosure and it would be fine now concede that that didn’t work well and they’re wandering out and getting out whatever way they can.  I kind of feel like ‘what is the issue?’ There’s 600 some odd acres, clearly these are not the only box turtles in those 600 acres, there are probably tons of nesting sites that we don’t see.  That’s my feeling with that many acres.  Why don’t we just leave the turtles alone then.  At this point since it’s clear that experts say that they will navigate back to wherever they want to be, if they can do it they will do it, what are we doing?
Mr. Steve Coleman responded based on as been explained in the past few years with the enclosure we were attempting to temporarily hold while construction commenced right away, once the construction was completed the enclosure would be eliminated and the turtles would either utilize new areas or they would go back and adapt to the existing conditions that are there and that was the whole premise behind it.  We had some inherent flaws that we’ve documented with that and the recommendation now is to basically let the turtles adapt to the proposed development with the conditions that we’ve outlined in the current recommendations of having the exclusionary fencing which was part of the ongoing review from 2006 on.  As long as those measures are put in place, I think the turtles will adapt and use the majority of the Valeria property.  Our natural resource surveys which I wanted to point out were restricted to doing just the areas of the proposed development.  We did not study the larger parcel that’s been set aside as open space.  I couldn’t really comment directly on what the suitability is or how much habitat is available for box turtles.  We did some preliminary assumptions based on our knowledge of the area and we do think there’s a sizable population that can be supported but we don’t have any actual documentation on that. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you think that, from what the gentleman from Oxbow said earlier and your expertise also, the area that is shown on the screen there where there’s trace evidence, I believe, of some type of box turtle habitat.  That’s the open area where the dirt bikes soil is, no canopy, sun comes in.  Would this plan to put it closer to Furnace Dock Road to bring trucks or dump debris there, would that interfere with this, what looks like a nesting area which is in pretty close proximity?

Mr. Steve Coleman responded we did look at that back in 2008 and we felt that as long as the area was clearly defined and set aside I felt it was a compatible use because their habitat within that area was not really conducive for nesting. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’ll tell you, based on that article and I guess that’s not the definitive article but it was prepared by people who are experts in that area, what I’m gathering is that those turtles came over to that spot because they like all those leaves over there.  They like to burrow under the leaves, they nest there, they have babies and eggs.  They winter over in those kinds of areas so to me, possibly, they came there because they like those leaves over there, they just felt comfortable to them, this is what they like.  What I’m saying is maybe we ought to just leave them alone kind of what you said fence off the area and leave them alone.

Mr. Robert Foley stated what I’m saying is if this little section of that area closer to the road is used for vehicles or mulch or debris, or grass cuttings, wouldn’t that interfere with the larger area and even in the letter you’re referring to Loretta from Cortlandt Watch on page 2 it’s talking also about the Hollowbrook Golf Club preserve that to make sure that any construction areas or similar maybe where these vehicles would be dumping stuff, these set aside separately from where the turtles may be nesting.  That’s my concern.  I’m familiar with the area, I’ve been there.

Mr. Steve Coleman stated that’s what we were asked to evaluate back in 2008.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I wonder if there’s another area on the site, there is another smaller parcel B area but it’s closer to the townhomes.  Maybe that would be more accessible for trucks.  I know it’s not your area.
Mr. Steve Coleman responded based on my recollection if they put it in the front area I didn’t feel that that was going to take away from the habitat for box turtles in that area. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it would not.

Mr. Steve Coleman responded it would not and as long as they did the protective measures I think it would be a compatible use.  Are there other alternative locations?  Sure, there probably are but I think that’s up to the applicant to decide whether they want to place it somewhere else.  There’s conservation easements and  a lot of protection’s already built in but I can only respond to what we looked at back in 2008.  If it was placed where they indicated it then I feel it’s a compatible use for that area. 

Ms. Bernice Nelson stated the topography of this site will unfortunately not accommodate what is currently being discussed which is the setting aside of 1 acre at the entry to this area.  This is a rather steep slope coming off of Furnace Dock Road, going off an old road and it cannot be used for the turning of trucks or the dumping of any clippings in that area.  You have to come up into the site and turn around which has the dump and that area will be contiguous to where the box turtles are nesting so it doesn’t work to just have 1 acre.  As a matter of fact this is extremely steep.  There is a very steep stone bank at the front of this area so it does not work.  I’m asking for five simple things from the Planning Board that when you approve this application, which I’m sure you will, that you condition on five simple conditions: “the conservation easement for open space parcel D shall be further amended to merge the 3 acre rectangular conservation easement area D therein into the conservation easement area, the green part, so as to extend the environmental protection in such conservation easement area A over the entire merged area.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated let’s take it one at a time, you’re a lawyer right?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded yes.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you think we have standing to do that when in fact the agreement’s between them and the Land Trust?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded yes you do and the reason you do is because the FEIS, SEQRA findings statement, preliminary plat approval and final plat approval required a conservation easements which would protect biodiversity protection area D and what happened…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked haven’t we in fact seated that responsibility now to the Westchester Land Trust?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded no, the Westchester Land Trust is merely a grantee of these conservation easements.  It has no responsibility to protect the box turtles.  These particular sections are exceptions to the conservation easement.  The conservation easement generally does not allow excavation, it does not allow dumping, it does not allow any soil erosion and so therefore, the developer put into this conservation easement a reservation of certain rights.  They reserved the right to dump and to park vehicles in that area.  The Westchester Land Trust has no responsibility as to the box turtle protection plan.  They are merely holding this site as what is called a grantee and their only responsibility under that conservation easement is to bring a lawsuit against a trespasser if one happens upon the property other than that they have no other responsibilities.  The reason I bring this up and I think this should be brought to the Board’s attention, you have a project or 147 new townhouses, you took lead agency, you had an FEIS, you had a SEQRA findings statement, you had a box turtle protection plan, final plat approval, a very arduous process.  Amendments have been brought to you to change sixplexes to triplexes to eliminate a large swimming pool, a large recreational area and to eliminate some tennis courts.  The developer has submitted a one-page, short environmental assessment form to you that does not comply with SEQRA.  These are rather not large amendments but definitely of substance amendments and you took only a short form and have not taken lead agency on this application.  I have heard of another application here tonight that had an expanded long form and then has now been required to have an environmental impact statement.  You didn’t even require…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my understanding of SEQRA actually is that having gone through findings statement that are minor modifications doesn’t require anything under SEQRA.

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded this is not a minor modification.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s for the Board to decide but if we believe it’s a minor modification I don’t think we have to do anything under SEQRA.  We’ve already covered this with findings statements.

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded the short form environmental assessment if you will read it, you have a copy of it, does not even reveal that it is eliminating recreational facilities.  It does not state it in the short environmental assessment form.  It is a defect of the second condition…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you against the proposed changes that they want to make?

Ms. Bernice Nelson responded no I think they’re great.  As a matter of fact a partner of Mr. Eickelbeck at a meeting that I sat in three years ago suggested that there be no sixplexes and instead be two triplexes in that site and for some reason, marketing or whatever Mr. Eickelbeck decided that he didn’t want to go with his partner’s recommendation.  I’m very much in favor of the loss of sixplexes in section 3 and I would like to see them lost in section 4 too when they get there. As far as losing recreational facilities, that is an internal matter which people at Valeria know my position on but it’s not a matter for this meeting tonight.  The second condition that I would be asking is no further box turtles shall be relocated to the enclosure area and the open space parcel A.  I think everyone agrees to that condition.  #3) Any box turtles currently remaining in the enclosure area which were relocated there from section 3 and 4 should be relocated to protected areas on the easterly side of Furnace Dock Road.  If there’s a turtle living over there who was a westerly Furnace Dock Road turtle before, let him remain on the westerly side.  If he came from the easterly side and there only seemed to be a couple bring them back and Ms. Taylor said ‘let them live their life in peace.’  #4) Enclosure area shall be opened up to permit the movement of box turtles in and out of the enclosure.  Now, I think as Mr. Butler has spoken to, we had originally thought that perhaps the whole enclosure should be taken down and I know Mr. Coleman has recommended that the back of it be opened up.  We think it might be good to just take the little mesh fencing off so that the turtles, the few that are in there, could move if they had to but we see no reason why expense should be incurred to take down that fence.  It’s rather attractive as long as it’s repaired just take the mesh off that’s enough.  And the last one I think everybody agrees to: prior to construction in sections 3 and 4 respectively box turtles found in construction areas shall be relocated outside such construction areas and exclusion fencing shall be erected and maintained so as to keep such box turtles outside of such areas during construction.  As you can see, the last four conditions that appears everyone agrees to.  The issue really is down to the orange box right there and I would beseech you and implore you to act in accord with Doctor Clemens’s reports, Mr. Coleman’s report and our consultant’s report that this is a very important box turtle nesting area and it should not allow vehicles to be in there and storage of materials because it’s detrimental to their nesting and life.  I have these conditions for you.
Mr. Charlie Eickenberg stated the first thing is I live in Valeria, I’ve been there for 6 years.  I’ve been in this Town for 32 years.  I’ve sat for 7 years through this campaign of trying to get things built.  I recognize most of you people on the Board who’ve been here for the 7 years.  It’s been an up-and-down seesaw battle like nothing in my life, I can imagine in this country that we would allow it to happen.  That’s why you see this group of people behind me tonight, this group of people support the builder 100%, that’s why you have the turnout that you have here tonight.  You have this turnout tonight because we are 80 people at Valeria, 76 out of the 80 of which voted for the new proposal for the new recreational projects for everything that was going on for the builder that’s had more patience than anybody I’ve ever endured in my life.  I’d just like to say that the Town we keep bringing up more things.  If this group, and this gentleman here, could you just tell me something?  Who brought you in?  You said you weren’t a hired gun?

Mr. Ivan Kline stated sir, please just address comments to the Board.  This is not an examination between people and the audience.  Just please talk to us, we’ll get this over with.

Mr. Charlie Eickenberg stated what I’m asking for to this Board here, look in the mirror tonight and say ‘you know what? When is enough, enough?’  Because, if this thing is not right next month it’ll be something else, next month it’ll be something else.  Remember gentlemen and ladies we had 76 out of 80 people vote in favor of this new proposal.  We want to get on with our lives, we want to get more residents in there.  We are overwhelming right now with the amount of money we’re paying to maintain that property.  We have waited a long time and I ask you to please consider this proposal, allow the amendment to go forward and let’s get on with things at Valeria.  Thank you very much. 

Mr. David Glass stated I’m a scientist and a resident of Valeria.  I just wanted to add one point.  While I we were sitting there I was just looking up something about the life cycle and the habits of the turtles.  They’re able to travel as much as a mile and there’s 600 acres on this site.  So, this idea that they high fidelity to any one nesting site is just not true.  There’s some females who do have high fidelity for a site but they’re able to move.  It’s not like they’re wedded to a particular few square feet.  The idea that having 600 acres is not sufficient for the extent animals, I just don’t think is granted.  Also, one other biology point, we rarely know what we study so obviously there’s a lot of focus on this one site but there’s been no focus on nesting sites on the other 600 acres, obviously so the idea that this is the only site is very improbable given the habits of these animals.

Ms. Ingrid Bacci stated I’m a resident at Valeria.  I’ve been there for 5 years and I’ve been a resident in the general area for about 20 years.  I would like to just expand, for the moment, on what Charlie Eickenberg said.  By the way, I’m a devoted lover of our wildlife and that’s one of the reasons that I’m at Valeria and I think most of the people who are at Valeria are very fond of the wildlife that we’re able to experience there.  the issue that’s raised tonight has potentially a certain amount of legitimacy.  I don’t personally know, but I would like the Board to consider it in the context of the fact that this issue is raised in part in relationship to an ongoing struggle that we’ve had over the development issue for many, many years.  The Town Board knows that development has been stalled for many, many years or gone on and off again, on and off again.  Recently, as Mr. Eickenberg mentioned, when the developer came to the community and proposed a change that would involve frankly financial benefit and a reduction in hardship for virtually everybody within the Valeria community and no essential negative side to it as far as most of us can see we had the – you may know that in order to make a change to the contract, 80% of the community has to agree to that and as Mr. Eickenberg said – 80% is a large percentage, as Mr. Eickenberg said, 76 unit owners overwhelmingly agreed with those changes, the changes that are being presented to you tonight and so I would like to just point out again that most of us in the community would like to see this project go forward.  We gain from it financially, we gain from it personally, we gain in terms of the quality of the overall environment.  We’re sure that most of us feel devoted to the box turtle and we feel that the rights of the box turtles can be protected without further inhibiting the right of the developer along with the will of most of the community to continue with this development prospect.
Mr. Sal Tricoma stated I’m the president of the Dickerson Pond Association.  I coordinated that vote with the help of many people that are here.  It’s important that you understand that the vote was unanimous that 76 votes, 4 people, 4 residents did not vote, that is not a ‘no’.  I even did an inquiry on that and learned that as well.  I turned back one of the proxies because it wasn’t even filled out right so we’ve even had more than that.  We want to understand from our hearts that there’s one voice that is blocking this and has been blocking this for a long, long time.  It’s been 10 years since the development agreement has been made.  There are 76 voices and more than that actually that are very much for this.  May I ask the community of Valeria to stand up please for a moment that are here?  I need this Board to look at those faces for a moment to understand they’re real people like yourself, yes, that’s dramatic sir but I want you to know this is very real for us.  Thank you.  I had to do research on the eastern box turtle myself because I was confused as a former principal of a school in the Town of Cortlandt of why experts would disagree among themselves, and you have to take their words, why would they pen eastern box turtles?  It allowed them to be predated by skunks, possums.  They were sitting ducks.  We’ve learned a lot in this country in human history about penning people and now we penned turtles to save them.  And now we’re talking about other areas that from what I understand from Westchester Land Trust shouldn’t even be before the Board at this point.  It’s your prerogative to have it but one person is bringing it before the Board.  I ask you to weigh that.  Ms. Taylor I’ve so much appreciated what you had to say because everything that I read said the same thing.  The turtles are smart animals by the way they are not endangered, they are not threatened species.  They’re on a watch.  We care about them.  Valeria is a very special place.  We moved there for the flora and fauna.  When I open my eyes every day I spend the day looking at the beauty of the lake, the animals that are around there and the trees, we value them.  I work with the Planning Board and the CAC about our trees.  We don’t things cut down that don’t need to be.  We try to save what we can. I urge you to listen to Ms. Taylor’s comments.  Leave the turtles alone.  They find their way.  They are not stupid.  They look to save their families just like you do.  That’s dramatic but the turtles do the same thing.  They’ll find a way.  We need your help now.  Please, give a Resolution tonight so we don’t have to wait any longer.  I thank you.

Mr. Kyler Cragnolin stated most of you will remember 12 or 13 years ago when this was before biodiversity studies in the Town of Cortlandt.  I stood in front of – with the exception of Mr. Bernard, and I had done my own biodiversity study and I had brought to the attention of this Board a lot of the rich biodiversity and key habitat that was there at Valeria.  My aim was just to see that those areas were protected.  I think we’ve gone through a long and protracted process to see that that happened.  The size of the applicant’s initial proposal was reduced and I think all told we have come up with a project that we can all be happy with.  At one point our relationship was adversarial much to the chagrin of Mr. Zutt.  I had a long laundry list to begin with.  At this point, if we’re going to attach blame and I don’t think we should, the turtle enclosure’s obviously a failed experiment and by Mr. Clemens’ and Mr. Coleman’s own admissions, it was an experiment but I don’t think they should be faulted or this Board should be faulted for following their lead in that.  It was an experiment.  It was something that really didn’t work out.  I’m in complete agreement with Mr. Coleman’s revised proposal of July 25th.  I think it’s sound.  My initial idea for the project was a good system of exclusion to keep the turtles off the building site.  I think that’s what we should always have been done.  I think it should be done now.  What we don’t want to do here is penalize the applicant for this failure, if you want to call it that, this experiment, he has been totally compliant with all the various mandates regarding the turtles as well as very agreeable in terms of the conservation easements that we worked on for so long.  In fact, what we have here is something we all can be proud of.  It’s a model project in that the end result was a tremendous amount of habitat was preserved.  We did a good thing here.  What we don’t want to do is delay him at this point and rather than reward him for his good efforts and intentions here penalize him.  I don’t think that would be just.  I’ve been told recently that I’ve abandoned Valeria’s box turtles and that’s an outrageous accusation, I certainly haven’t and I don’t think anyone who is concerned about the environment would not want to see a good resolution of these questions that have been raised tonight and I think the Board has the capacity to work with the applicant and with Mr. Coleman to find an acceptable resolution to these open questions regarding the box turtles.  I don’t think it’s something we need to resolve tonight.  I don’t see it as an issue that should in any way deter the approval of these and I agree with Mr. Kline, are minor changes to the application.  Thank you.
Mrs. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated this time on behalf of Cortlandt Watch.  Cortlandt Watch would like to thank and acknowledge the efforts of the Board in the original site plan approval which sought to provide protection for the box turtles and also to thank other people who were involved; the Town’s consultant Steve Coleman and also the owners of Valeria and the developer.  It’s pretty clear as of the last Planning Board meeting that that plan failed and that the suggested new plan is to take down the existing turtle pen, fence out the turtles from the proposed construction area, make sure there’s no turtles before or during construction and make sure that there’s no vehicle parking or equipment or material storage on the construction site.  I don’t sense tonight listening to everybody who has spoken that there’s any opposition to the amended site plan which is a great thing.  What seems to me to be the sticking point and it’s puzzling given the amount of space available is the conflict over the dumping of organic materials and the parking storage of vehicles in one of the designated conservation areas and it seems to me that it would be a pretty simple resolution to mandate that those activities not be carried out within one of the conservation areas.  It seems that there should be plenty of space on the site where the storage of grass clippings or mulch or whatever organic materials and vehicles could be achieved and it seems that that would resolve the issues that are revolving around this amended site plan.  Cortlandt Watch will be sending you a letter on the organization’s position on this but I just wanted to make our position clear tonight. 
Ms. Bernice Nelson stated I would just like to state on the record that of all of those people who have spoken from Valeria and I’m going to look around at all of those that are here, I am the only, of those who have spoken tonight, there are a few who were here at that time, of those who have spoken tonight I am the only Valeria unit owner who voted in favor of the development agreement to create up to 253 new townhouses at Valeria.  It serves certain people’s interest to somehow say that my concern about box turtles and earlier as you know was the Valeria gate is because I am against the developer.  I am not, number one, I’m finished with that.  #2) the individual who spoke to you about the comment of abandoning the box turtles, I was the one who made the comment to him because I was very disappointed in him.  He is the one who in 2006 brought to my attention the dumping in the area which is orange and was so much against it and so opposed to it and based on that I drafted the conservation easement which later was for the 600 acres whom we tried to incorporate but he is the individual so that’s the reason I made the comment to him that he had abandoned the turtles because he is the one that said don’t dump…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Bill Zutt stated I appreciate the support of the community members who’ve spoken.  What I’ve heard tonight was absolutely no objection to the relief sought from your Board.  I think it was also clear, Mr. Butler acknowledge in response to Mr. Kline’s question, that nothing about what’s being proposed would have any adverse impact on the box turtle protection plan.  I would point out that the conservation easements about which has been so much discussion had to be reviewed and approved by the Town prior to their signing by the developer and by Westchester Land Trust and that is the case.  There is no legal basis, in my view, to condition any approval you may give this application on any change to conservation easements, on any change to the box turtle mitigation plan.  Having said that, my client has authorized me to say that they will continue to work with Mr. Coleman in an effort to ensure that that plan is productive and successful but we don’t believe there is a basis to link the implementation or changes to that plan with the application before you.  Thank you. 

Mr. John Bernard stated as much as I do not want to speak to it there is a linkage between the box turtles and all of this other discussion tonight and this particular application that’s before us now and the linkage is that construction hasn’t started there yet.  You’ve had an application approved for some length of time and it was predicated on a long SEQRA process that included the environmental protection and this experiment with the box turtles.  It included all that and included in those protections was a construction timeframe that did not obtain.  That’s just due to market forces or unfortunate circumstances or bad weather, it doesn’t really matter, but the scheduling has not come about as was originally approved.  There is a linkage and it’s a linkage that cannot be broken.  It would be certainly far preferable for all parties to just make an agreement, a sensible agreement, which is what you’re alluding to that the applicant’s willing to do to park construction equipment in an appropriate place not on top of a turtle nests, I know there’s no problem with that we could’ve gotten there an hour ago…

Mr. Bill Zutt stated I think there’s a misunderstanding, with due respect Mr. Bernard, the proposal or the conservation easement does not authorize the parking of construction equipment.  The purpose of the easement to which you’re referring was to park vehicles that are utilized in the long term maintenance and servicing of the facility after construction.  There’s a major misunderstanding there. 

Mr. John Bernard stated after construction, before construction, it doesn’t matter. 

Mr. Bill Zutt continued I think, unfortunately, I don’t want to digress too much on this but you have so therefore so am I, as I said, the developer will work in good faith with the Town’s consultants this issue that’s been brought to the fore.  However, there is no basis, again in my view, to condition this approval if one is forthcoming upon anything having to do with the existing agreements or the box turtle protection plan. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if I’m reading sentiment of the Board correctly that there is a willingness to move forward today with an approval, am I right? 

Mr. Ivan Kline responded we don’t have a Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated what I’m saying is that the sentiment of the Board is to approve this amendment, am I right. 

Board members responded ‘yes.’

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so then we can direct the staff to prepare an approving Resolution and I do think, and I’m so happy your client has agreed to work with Westchester Land Trust, the Town and our staff to pull together something that would be satisfactory to all concerned.  I think Karen Bernard summarized it as clearly as it could be.  I think it’s been in my head since I sat here.  It just doesn’t seem as though intelligent people can’t work this thing out.  We’re all smart up here. We’re not a room full of dumbbells.  We can figure this out and we can make it work and I really hope that we all do so in the spirit of what will be the best for Valeria, and best of the Town of Cortlandt and I’m sure you will.  I would like to also propose that this be, tonight, in a sense that we’re all agreeing that we walk away from here that there will be a legitimate perhaps sometimes a protracted attempt to get some agreement that makes everybody happy.  We’re not forcing you to do it but we’re asking you to do it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I would have to say that I agree with what John was saying and also what you have said.  If there’s a way that this can be worked out.  I don’t like this blame game and I don’t think the Nelson’s are to blame for the delays in the project.  There are other forces as John has mentioned.  Mr. Eickelbeck you were telling us that there is no plan and any conservation easement to store any vehicles or dump of any type of debris.
Mr. Mark Eickelbeck stated after rate read the exact language, my recollection and the intent of this area…
Mr. Bill Zutt stated the originally executed conservation easement contained a number of reservations, and I’ll repeat they were all approved by the Town prior to the instruments being signed.  Among the rights that were reserved in conservation easement area D were the following: “1) the right to dispose of grass clippings, leaves, chipped dead trees, shrubs and similar organic waste material resulting from the maintenance of the property.  2) The right to construct, improve and maintain the lawn and landscaped areas including the use of fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides and weed controls. Grantor, which was the developer, agrees to consult with grantee, Westchester Land Trust, regarding the materials to be used for fertilizer, pesticides, herbicide and weed controls, additionally the right to install, operate and maintain irrigation systems.  Finally, to your point Mr. Bernard, store and maintain equipment and materials necessary for the maintenance of the property.”  Those rights were originally reserved with respect to the entirety of parcel D, they are now limited to the 3 acre rectangle which was illustrated by Mr. Butler in his drawing. 

Mr. John Bernard stated and I would suggest that we will be asking staff to prepare an approving Resolution which also has conditions to limit that 3 acre area and with the applicant’s approval relocate it as necessary so that it’s not on top of an active turtle nesting area, which we know it is. 

Mr. Bill Zutt stated with due respect, we will object to that condition, not to the sense of it but to the methodology.  We do not believe there is any legitimate basis to condition the approval of this…

Mr. John Bernard stated one of the legitimate bases is that our Town consultant had a different area described to him than the 3 acres that finally obtained with that agreement. 

Mr. Bill Zutt continued Mr. Bernard you may not be aware because there was nothing before the Planning Board at that time but the signing of the amended conservation easement was done voluntarily by the applicant.  There was no requirement on this Board’s part or the Town’s part for them to sign that and significantly reduce the area within which they could exercise the rights I just read.  That was a voluntary act on the applicant’s part.  I think the applicant has demonstrated a considerable amount of good faith throughout this entire process and I think that should be recognized and…

Mr. John Bernard stated so legally what you’re telling me is you’d rather not have it in that form and I understand that and I’ll accept the good faith of the applicant to do the right thing as I really do believe that in the process of this that’s what’s occurred.

Mr. Bill Zutt responded thank you for that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you think legally, Bill, that there’s any violation of the SEQRA findings by not having a supplemental?

Mr. Bill Zutt responded absolutely not.  I think Mr. Kline’s point was exactly on.  This is a minimal modification of a previously approved plan.  A short environmental assessment form was appropriate.  Insofar as recreational modifications are concerned the Board may remember that a 580 thousand dollar recreational fee was paid so the recreational amenities were an additional commodity to the property owners and not part of your overall approval process.  The answer is that this Board can move forward.  In fact, in the very beginning I didn’t think that this was subject to SEQRA at all.  However, I did submit a short environmental assessment form in case staff felt otherwise. 


*



*



*
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PB 13-05    a.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement latest revision dated January 14, 2010 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of a 52.78 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision and Site Development for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated July 8, 2009 and on drawings entitled “Preliminary Landscape Plan” and “Stone Wall Plan” both prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. and dated July 21, 2009.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated there’s two things I’d like to bring to your attention; the first is I’d asked that the project summary memorandum dated July 30th that I had forwarded on to Chris Kehoe for tonight’s meeting, I don’t know that it had been circulated to you but I had asked that it be made part of the record of the proceeding.  It’s a one-page summary, that way I won’t go through it, it’s part of the application.  The other point is, during the workshop, I have to admit it was really kind of hard to hear from where we were but the gist that I gathered was there was a discussion about the economic consideration that we had raised in our correspondence with the Board and I thought that I had heard one or two of the members indicate that economic impact under the suitable balance test under SEQRA where you balance out the social, economic and environmental factors that that economic impact only spoke to economic impact on third parties or on other sites and did not include the economics of the actual project itself.  I would suggest that that is not an accurate interpretation of SEQRA.  SEQRA does require a balance of the social, economic and environmental impacts and it does not exclude the economic impacts of the relevant project.  So, I would ask that you keep in mind that we have asked all along and as we laid out that in our summary, we believe that we have achieved a suitable balance of the environmental considerations.  We have consistently reduced the project scale, reduced impacts across the board but we believe we’ve arrived at a point where the proposal that we now have is at an economic breaking point and so consequently our position is SEQRA does require that you give that some consideration in your overall evaluation of the project.  Just like as I indicated in my letter, no developer would want you to approve a project that was not economically viable and certainly it would not be in the best interest of the Town to condition a project such that it renders the project not economically viable.  But, the point to be made is this, I did hear that comment during the work session that you don’t consider the economic impact on the actual project itself under SEQRA and it’s our considered position that you do.  Other than that we’re basically here to answer any questions that you have.

Mr. John Klarl stated what was discussed at the work session was basically the long line under SEQRA that says you look at specifically economic impacts when there’s going to be a negative impact by a project on others.  The Board is not supposed to inquire as to your bank book and do think but what the Board feels that something they approve might have a negative impact like downtown area, you know the big case where a Wal-Mart comes in and wipes out downtown then SEQRA says you can look into that issue.
Mr. Peter Lynch stated well John, that’s my whole point, that would be a very common economic impact to look at and that’s why I’m saying is the economic impact on third parties is of course a factor to consider under SEQRA but it’s not limited to that.  If you look at 6MYCRR617.1D, it does not say economic impact on third party sites, it just says economics.  My focus here is just to bring to your attention, we believe that if this Board were to make a SEQRA determination and consider only the economic impact that this project may or may not have on other areas or other sites I believe that that would not be an appropriate evaluation under SEQRA.  Of course, you would consider those impacts if they did exist but you also should consider is our intention the economics of the project to determine whether or not SEQRA has played an important role in evaluating the project which of course it has here as evidence by significant reduction of the project scale but I would ask that the economics of this project also be considered. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think I agree with you from a legal perspective.  I would also note, we have no possible basis in the record that was made here to determine economic viability, none.  You’ve put in something with some expenses you’ve incurred but are we supposed to sit here now and guess what these houses will sale through at in three year?  Do you have an expert opinion on what they’ll sell through at?  The Town’s appraisal is completely irrelevant as to the economic viability of this property for you, completely irrelevant.  I disagree with you from a legal or conceptual point-of-view.  From that perspective because housing prices have declined since you’ve submitted this application you’re entitled to more lots than you were when you submitted the application notwithstanding environmental impacts because what might have been economically viable in 2005 is no longer economically viable because you won’t get that sell through when you build these houses.  I don’t think that’s our job to consider that nor is there anything in the record that would even allow us to put the numbers together.  Maybe you’ll make a lot of money maybe you won’t, we don’t know. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated with all due respect, if the regulations under SEQRA were to limit your view of economic impacts on others it would have said so.  It does not and frankly here I think your analogy is misplaced in view of the fact that we have not come back to the Board and said ‘hey, we have economic hard times, we want to increase the number of lots.’  In fact the original proposal was 27 now it’s down to 20 new homes.  In all fairness, I think economics of the project is a factor for you to consider because you’re looking at the project in a real world scenario.  For example Mr. Kline, you wouldn’t say ‘well, there’s a wetland area on this site so we’re going to let you build one house.’  Now, would that be a suitable balance of the economic, social and environmental factors?  Of course not.  Is that a criteria that you’re allowed to consider?  Of course it is.  In fact, under SEQRA it’s our contention that you should and are required to consider it.  I wanted to bring this to your attention because when I heard the comment during the workshop that you only consider the economic impact on potential other sites my fear was that you would not give any consideration to the economic balance for this project and I think that you should.  So that’s the point that we’re making. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know where the Board stands at this point on that particular issue.  I know that I’ve sat on the Board for years now and the whole idea of us investigating the economic viability of a particular applicant’s project is generally not surfaced at all and on the few occasions when we had some serious reservations we were cautioned not to pursue that particular line.  Just in terms of my own history here on the Board, we don’t go there and in fact, this Board knows that I very often get ticked off by the fact that we seem to be prevented from inquiring early on in the process as to the economic feasibility of this project given we know the Town of Cortlandt and then having applicant’s bristle at the idea that we want to pursue their economics and their funding and their monies and then when they get into trouble they come here and they ask for extensions and this and that and the other thing because they’re having hard times and I always feel ‘well, we weren’t privy to any of this information at the beginning or at the outset or during the development of this process, why are you asking us about what to do, how we can help you manage your serious economic hardships.’  I find that that has been one of the points that I really get a little ticked off about quite frankly.
Mr. Peter Lynch responded I think in this particular case, let’s just take an example, we had gone through the whole FEIS process, the initial Coleman report was incorporated in the changes that were made between the DEIS and the FEIS and the project scale was reduced from 27 new homes to 21 new homes with a 22 acre open space developing area and after the FEIS process was completed Mr. Coleman came in with another report that said ‘hey, okay you’ve got an open space area but I’m going to recommend that you eliminate lots 1, 12, and 13 and 17 and 18.’  So the question becomes, to what end there’s an environmental recommendation from Mr. Coleman and how do you balance that out on the project?  Do you just say ‘okay, Mr. Coleman is recommending a larger open space area, should we just approve what his recommendations are without considering the overall impact that that may have on the viability of the project?’ I think not.  Frankly, what we tried to do in our responses back to Mr. Coleman’s recommendations was to let the Board know that if you adopt wholesale his environmental recommendations because I think his recommendations would fall into the environmental category as opposed to economic category, if you adopt those wholesale what are you actually doing to the economic viability of the project?  Our contention is that under SEQRA when you’re trying to balance out an environmental comment or recommendation like the one Mr. Coleman had made to eliminate 5 lots from a 21 lot subdivision it is incumbent upon this Board, I believe, under SEQRA to also balance that out with the economic impacts on the project itself and that’s why I’m bringing it to your attention because where do you draw line when you as a Board get a recommendation from an environmental consultant, where do you achieve a balance?  Because, bear in mind, correct me if I’m wrong, weigh the interest of the community that this project may have on the respective property owner’s rights to achieve a reasonable use of his property.  That’s why we’re bringing this to your attention that you just don’t take an environmental factor and say ‘make that open space bigger and eliminate lots 1, 12 and 13 and eliminate lots 17 and 18 down on Lexington because of the steep slope without considering what impact that would have on the overall project.’  Bear in mind, if I may, while you may not have done this in the past, I think in the context of a case like this where we have consistently reduced the project scale from the DEIS forward and then when we get a comment post FEIS to eliminate 5 lots, in fairness, I think it’s incumbent upon the Board to consider ‘is that reasonable or is it going too far and how do you make that determination?’
Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Lynch, if I may, I could comment on some of what you’re saying.  First of all with the last request for a reduction we can take the two lots in particular up on the northern part of the property and those were questionable from day one and there were many comments made by the Board and on the site visit about the location of those houses and the proximity to the wetland and the topographically, the low areas that those two houses were proposed for, the steepness of the driveway coming down off of Lexington – there were various reasons why it was suggested that those two particular lots for instance were being asked to be eliminated and it wasn’t left to the last minute with Mr. Coleman’s report. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated it wasn’t in Mr. Coleman’s 2005 report but in any event….

Mr. Ivan Kline stated but it was commented on by numerous Board members at numerous meetings that we had some serious concerns about those two lots because of the slopes issues, the drainage issues and so forth.  You just chose to ignore them all along until last month.  That’s your right to do but don’t look at us and say ‘well because Mr. Coleman just stuck it in a report after the FEIS came along that we’re just sort of latching on to that.’  This was commented on three years ago. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated as you can see we have made the modification that eliminates the impacts of lots 17 and 18 and created the conservation easement on the steep slope area.  So, as you can see, as we have continuously done to the extent that we feel that we actually can, we have implemented a project modification to mitigate the environmental impact.

Mr. John Bernard stated and that’s the second point I wanted to make, that’s this economic balance.  We have absolutely no way of knowing what that economic balance point is.  We do not know your financial situation.  We don’t know anything about the proposed money to be made or not made on these homes of any quantity and so you’re asking us to balance something against information that’s unknowable and that’s not part of the SEQRA process.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded well, Mr. Bernard, with all due respect, I disagree.

Mr. John Bernard stated we just have to take your word for the fact that you can only make money on five houses and not four and we cannot know that.  We can’t know that.

Mr. Peter Lynch stated you may recall that during the FEIS process we went through a number of drafts and one of the appendices to the draft FEIS that we had was a listing of the actual expenses of the project and we were asked to remove that from the FEIS as part of that process of dealing with staff.  We did but we submitted that in our recent letter to show you that we have approximately 2.1 million into the project.  We have a Town appraisal of the property as an approved property of approximately – the offer was 2 million we believe the appraisal was about 2.2 million.  If you take that base information and you say ‘okay, look it, the Town’s appraisal assumed a 21 lot subdivision and if a 21 lot subdivision were approved it would be worth, the offer was 2 million, we believe it was 2.2 million dollar appraisal.’  We demonstrate our actual expenses.  Those are not projections.  Those are actuals of approximately 2.1 million dollars.  We have now 20 new homes to be built with the one lot being maintained because of an easement issue.  If you back out Mr. Coleman’s recommendations for example, eliminate 5 lots, you’re effectively eliminating 25% of the value of the project.  When we know the value of the project as an approved project for the Town is a little over 2 million dollars.  The reality is is that there is information in the record that will let you know that loss of 5 lots in a modest project of this size is a devastating economic impact. 
Mr. John Bernard stated Mr. Lynch, I’ll tell you exactly what that information let’s us know.  It let’s us know that as an investment perhaps the money was ill-spent, perhaps as an investment perhaps the educated decision to go ahead and spend 2.1 or 2.2 million dollars that you’ve invested so far in property and potential cost to pay off the mortgage for the property, perhaps that was ill-advised and we can’t then go backwards and repair a bad investment.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I’m not asking you to do that. 

Mr. John Bernard stated but you are. 

Mr. Peter Lynch stated no, absolutely not, as a matter of fact, I recall on the record Mr. Bernard, from a November 2007 public hearing you had made some inquiries on whether or not the Town should purchase it assuming the value of a 16 lot subdivision and I note now that we have a 21 lot subdivision including the existing home that we’re going to have 20 new and yet now if we adopt Mr. Coleman’s recommendation to eliminate 5 lots that brings us down essentially a 16 lot subdivision and the problem is that issue back in November of ’07 is the same issue that we have here today.  If you take away 25% essentially of the marketability of the project by eliminating 5 lots you have effectively eliminated the ability to build the project.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated let me just stop you there.  We don’t know that and I don’t know that it matters anyway but I’ll give you a perfect example.  The Valeria thing we just sat through what did they start off with?  300 some odd, so they ended up at 147.  Somehow it’s going forward, slowly albeit but you can’t just take a number and say ‘gee, if you knock out this thus it must be economically non-viable.’  What does that mean, that it would cost you more going forward than the revenues you would generate, that you would end up with no return on your capital account and what you’ve already spent?  I don’t even think it matters by the way but you’re just throwing out a term and you’re just making a statement that automatically if you take out ‘x’ units it will now be a loser or something or it couldn’t be done and there’s nothing before us that will allow us to conclude that or not conclude that and I don’t think that’s for us to conclude anyway.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I respectfully disagree with that because there is in the record the appraisal information from the Town and the actual expenditure.  It’s our contention that we think that you should consider that economic impact.  We ask that you consider the economic impact of taking away 5 lots.  I don’t know if you’re going to adopt the recommendations of Mr. Coleman or not, all I’m asking you to do is that before you make a decision on that is to consider the actual impact that that may have on the economic viability of the project and I wanted to bring this to your attention because during the work session it appeared to me, and maybe I was wrong and I was having a hard time hearing, but I thought I heard a member say that ‘well the economic impact of the project itself is not a factor to consider under SEQRA’ and I disagree, I think it is.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s a matter where people can reasonably disagree. We, as I said, have a history of not really pursuing that particular line and I don’t know that in the 11th hour now the Board is willing to or able to actually go there.  I know that we have reached a point where we know we’ve got to begin to wrap this whole thing up and the Board has had some discussion about where we stand in terms of the numbers and we’re looking at possibly somewhere between 16 and 18 that we can feel reasonably comfortable approving.  I think they’re adamant of not going over 18 and they’re hoping that if you can work this out then we’ll go along and we’ll probably approve the application but you’ve got to be clear that it’s not going to exceed 18 and that’s, for some of us, a lot.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just let me say for the record, not an arbitrary number.  I’m going back to what I’ve said at previous meetings there’s just certain homes that I feel given the disturbances that would take place here on the property in terms of steep slopes and otherwise that I feel are not appropriate to have and you reference that in your memo, your letter to us and you obviously tried to thread the needle here and try and say that you could still do it and overcome my objections which I still don’t agree with.  I think when we discussed it there’s still those issues on those homes and I think where we’re going is we’re willing to sit down and work with you to try and come up with some reasonable number here as the Chairman said between 16 and 18 but we need to sit down face-to-face across the table, this Board and whomever you think is appropriate from your side and – a special meeting just one agenda item, and let’s try and work this out so that you can have an economically viable project and we can have our needs met as well in terms of what we think is appropriate and not appropriate in terms of building lots. 

Mr. Peter  Lynch stated we would certainly be most willing to attend a special meeting for that purpose.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do need to have an extension because apparently we have only one day after the September meeting and then we would time line would have expired so we need to get an extension on that and then set a date for this special meeting. 

Mr. Peter Lynch responded okay.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would do it in August but apparently people are saying there’s still vacations being taken in August and I’d like for all of the Board members to be here.  I really would.  If August is not a good month for all of us then we’ll move to September.  August is okay for me. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you just have to check on the Holidays in September that’s all.

Mr. John Klarl asked Mr. Lynch they’re considering an August date or September date so do you want to do an extension until October?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that would be fine. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so, on the record, you’ll extend the time until October meeting date?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded yes. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked why are we extending it to the date?  

Mr. John Klarl responded the day after. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked in terms of the actual special meeting?

Board members discussing dates.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Thursday the 16th everybody, is that good?  Yes? 

Mr. Peter Lynch asked 7:00 p.m.?

Mr. John Klarl stated Thursday, September 16th, 7:00 p.m.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion on this application we set up a special meeting, no other agenda items, for Thursday, at 7:00 p.m. on September 16th and we acknowledge that the applicant has extended the time the day after the October 6th meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 3-09      b.
Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Ryan Main, LLC” prepared by Cronin Engineering dated June 30, 2010.


Mr. Tim Cronin stated our office put together the application package which was delivered to the Town for this meeting.  We did an expanded part III to take into account the scope of studies that the Town request we take a look at last fall or last winter.  We think we’ve addressed everything and would like to see the project advanced and if possible set it for a public hearing for next month.  Referred by for reviews by Town for…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously you don’t want to take too long but it’s late, there’s a lot of these referrals back and then I’m always caught in the middle in a sense.  This application’s been around for a while.  I think there’s site inspections 56 units replacing 56 units, they submitted the expanded scope.  We can’t really complete all the studies in house so we’re going to try to get some outside consultants to help but.  Do you want to explain anything about it?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can you do an abbreviated?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just don’t think that I’ve ever actually heard any Board member have any opinion one way or another about this project.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated up until now we didn’t have much on it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can we do a very abbreviated because you’ll have opportunity again to come before us but in as much as you have been here all night I really think it’s probably appropriate to something. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated as everybody recalls this is the property that’s located just east of the beer distributor that’s located east of the Cortlandt Town Center.  Here’s the beer distributor and it’s a whole series of bungalows and cottages in this general area that we’re looking to redevelop as part of the RRUSP provisions in the Town Zoning Ordinance and there are 56 units currently.  The Town Code does allow, I believe a 20% increase but we’re sticking with the number 56.  We’re not looking for any expanded unit count.  What we’re proposing is…
Mr. John Bernard stated currently it’s 56 units and how many buildings?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I would guess 24 buildings.  That’s a guess…

Mr. John Bernard asked now it’s going to be 56 new units and how many structures?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded looks like 7.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated 56 residential units located in a total of 28 buildings.  28 are what’s there now. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 26 are what’s there now. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked are you reading the project narrative?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, I’m reading my notes. 26 buildings, 46 units.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated no we’ve always had 56.  There are some farther down here that are not in the greatest of shape but the number’s always been 56.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m sorry 56 units, 7 buildings, does that sound about right?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s what’s been proposed.  Currently, as I said I think there’s 20 or 24 buildings.  There’s some 2’s some 4’s.  I think there’s a couple of buildings with even more than that in it. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked so you’re going to how many buildings?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded 7 and one’s a clubhouse sort of like a caretaker’s residence.  We’re going to be eliminating a curb cut on Route 6.  We’re going to be doing storm water improvements, other utility improvements.  We will need to extend or find sewer somewhere.   One option is to work with the Westrock project and go down to Westbrook Drive with a combination of gravity and force mains.  Another option is to pump up the hill to the east and head into the Town of Yorktown but right now I think the approval process is very key and very important but I think ultimately the providing the sewer service is going to be probably the critical path that this project takes.  That’s what we’re working actually with DOTS on that and I understand that the Town has started the process to creating a sewer district and the process is moving along at its pace. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what’s the status of that beer and soda store in terms of whether or not you’re going to be working around it or you’re going to be taking it over?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded right now it’s not part of our project.  I understand that the owner of that facility has been approached and for whatever reason no common ground has been reached.  It has a certain value and I don’t think they’re willing to pay a premium to an extent but I just don’t think the numbers are close.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’ve excluded that for now. 

Mr. Tim Cronin responded exactly.  There will be provisions in the event that that does come through that we’ll be able to reconfigure our interior road system and then tie in our ingress and egress to the Baker Street intersection at which point there is a chance, and I think the warrants on the DOT has to be contacted on this, that it may be possible to put a light at that intersection. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked that’s the building right out to the lower left of the lower right-hand corner. 

Mr. Tim Cronin responded that’s the beer store there and that’s Baker. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but that is preventing you from having a possible entrance into that area…
Mr. Tim Cronin stated that’s their property line.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated we were told that the site visit you were there, I think Ed Vergano was there, that that was being worked on and the warrants were there and then when I saw your review books at the rear of it and I thought I brought them with me, the alternatives of the Baker’s Street which is better than this plan about a curb cut on Route 6. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated that’s out of our control.  If the person doesn’t want to sell we can’t force them to sell.

Mr. Robert Foley stated one of the plans appeared to have the location, I guess it was moved into your complex.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded correct.  I believe the beer store would be moved up into this location here which would seem to be an improvement for them.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m just trying to tell you that the Cortlandt Boulevard Plan, the impacts on that hill, you have to come up with a plan, or someone has to with the main entrance exit is at a four-way controlled intersection. 

Mr. Tim Cronin stated you take care of the beer store and we’ll take of the rest.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we know we’re going to be coming back to this so why don’t we go and refer it back.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 24-08    c.
Application of JJB Properties Inc., for the property of Homard Prod. Co. Inc., for Site Development Plan Approval for storage of 764 vehicles on a 5.1 acre parcel of property located on the west side of Arlo Lane as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan for Curry Automotive” prepared by Joel L. Greenberg, R.A. latest revision dated July 22, 2010 (see prior PB 8-00).

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I move that we schedule a public hearing for the next meeting and prepare a Resolution.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked was this for the next meeting?  Did we agree for October?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated for October yes, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-08    d.
Application of Nida Associates for Preliminary Plat Approval of a 4 lot major subdivision of a 4.28 acre parcel of property located at the northeast corner of Albany Post Road (Route 9A) and Baltic Place as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Plat for Nida Associates, Inc.”, prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated February 9, 2010 (see prior PB 21-03).

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chairwoman I think we agreed to schedule a public hearing so I move that we schedule a public hearing on this application for our September 7th meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*

CORRESPONDENCE

PB 1-08      a.
Letter dated July 8, 2010 from Joel Greenberg, R.A. requesting the 2nd one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for Patrick McCarney for the former Crompond Country Store located at 2305 Crompond Road (Route 202).

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution 37-10 approving the extension, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 28-98    b.
Letter dated July 8, 2010 from William Lockwood requesting a reduction in the soil erosion and maintenance security control bond from $15,000 to $5,000 for the Lockwood Estates Subdivision located on Lockwood Road.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution #38-10 approving the reduction, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 25-93    c.
Letter dated July 20, 2010 from William Balter requesting Planning Board approval for modifications to the conditionally approved Site Development Plan for the 92 unit Roundtop at Montrose development located on Route 9A.

Mr. William Balter stated we were here last month and we talked about this plan that you see before you.  I have Scott Blake here to answer any questions if you have them.  I wanted to point out one thing that we had talked about at the last meeting.  What we have here this is the Roundtop plan with the road network, the utilities, the storm water, everything as you’ve always seen it.  The only changes we made is we’ve gone from 5 buildings to 4 buildings.  The buildings are generally in the same locations here, here, here and here.  There used to be a building here so we’ve eliminated this building.  What we were able to do because we got rid of a building was we were able to take parking that came all the way down to here and move it over to here so we could do that without getting any closer to the wetland that was existing.  So, our disturbances are less because we were able to get rid of this parking here putting it closer to our residence that allowed us to grade this out and get rid of all these retaining walls that came through here which is a big improvement.  The recreation’s in the same place.  As you see we have – the clubhouse was kind of schematic before we put in the actual clubhouse that we’ll be doing.  Instead of having a pool that would only be used for only a couple of months of the year we put in a field here, a tot lot and a picnic area which will be used much more appropriate for this population for 92 homes.  With that, we had hoped that you would not require a public hearing and I understand you are going to require a public hearing.  We just ask that you hopefully can schedule it for September.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we schedule the public hearing for the September 7th meeting, seconded. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there was supposed to be a site inspection as well on this?

Mr. Robert Foley responded and a site visit on Sunday, August 29th, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-05    d.
Letter dated July 20, 2010 from William Zutt, Esq. requesting the 1st ninety-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Hillside Estates subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution 39-10 approving this, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 18-07    e.
Undated letter (received on July 21, 2010) from John Lentini, RA requesting the 1st one-year time extension of Site Development Plan Approval and Special Permit for the Food Stop Convenience Store/Gas Station located at 2225 Crompond Road (Route 202).

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution 40-10 approving that, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 2-05      f.
Letter dated July 23, 2010 from William Zutt, Esq. requesting the 2nd one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for Louis Rinaldi for a 2-story office and garage for a special trade contractor located on Route 129.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution 41-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
                   g.
Receive and file the Westchester County Development Checklist.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I move that we receive and file the Westchester County Development Checklist, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*




NEW BUSINESS 

PB 10-10    a.
Application of Teatown Lake Reservation Inc. for renewal of a Special Permit for a Private Nature Preserve to conduct a summer camp program and a weekday public program for property located on the north side of Teatown Road, approximately 3,000 feet east of Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Special Permit Map, Cliffdale Farm North” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. dated July 15, 2010.

Ms. Diane Barron stated I’m the Director of Administration and Operations at Teatown.  I don’t know what’s next.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I’ll move to refer it back to staff which will then prepare a memo and then it will come back on the Board’s agenda for action by the Board.

Mr. John Bernard asked we need to have a public hearing on this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  You mentioned to me one thing just for the Board and I think the Chairperson and I talked about it, they’re still mandated every month to submit those traffic logs.  One of the things they mentioned is there had been no complaints that last five years was quite controversial so one of the things that will be in the review memo is the request of possibly stop that reporting.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and you’ve received no complaints?

Ms. Diane Barren responded none. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated there was a summary that was submitted with the application that showed that you were way under the counts in most areas. 

Mr. John Bernard stated a couple of the people that were pretty much adamantly against it had moved. 

Mr. John Klarl asked no complaints in five years?

Ms. Diane Barron responded right. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman, motion to adjourn, 11:54 p.m. 
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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